
1

TO THE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held 
on Monday, 24 January 2022 at 7.00 pm in the Council Chamber - Civic Offices.

The agenda for the meeting is set out below.

JULIE FISHER
Chief Executive

NOTE:  Filming Council Meetings

Please note the meeting will be filmed and will be broadcast live and subsequently as an archive on the 
Council’s website (www.woking.gov.uk).  The images and sound recording will also be used for training 
purposes within the Council.  Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed.

AGENDA
PART I - PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT

Part I - Press and Public Present

1 Apologies for Absence 
To receive any apologies for absence.

2 Minutes (Pages 3 - 12)
To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 22 November 2021 as 
published.

3 Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes OSC22-001 (Pages 13 - 18)
To review and outstanding items from the previous minutes.

4 Urgent Business 
To consider any business that the Chairman rules may be dealt with under Section 100B(4) 
of the Local Government Act 1972.

5 Declarations of Interest 
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary and other interests from Members in 
respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

Matters for Determination

6 Work Programme OSC22-002 (Pages 19 - 42)
Reporting person: Councillor J Sanderson

7 Financial Review OSC22-006 (Pages 43 - 100)
Reporting person: Leigh Clarke

8 Joint Waste Management Performance Review OSC22-003 
Reporting person: Geoff Mcmanus

Attendees should note that this will be a presentation at the Committee.

9 Dr GIfty Edila's Report and Local Government Association Corporate Peer Challenge - 
Update on Recommendations OSC22-007 (Pages 101 - 112)
Reporting person: Jo Mcintosh

Performance Management

10 Performance and Financial Monitoring Information (Pages 113 - 166)
To consider the current publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information 
(Green Book). 

Reporting person: Councillor J Sanderson 

Task Group Updates

11 Terms of Reference of the HIF Housing Outputs Task Group OSC22-008 (Pages 167 - 168)
Reporting Person: Giorgio Framalicco

AGENDA ENDS

Date Published - 12 January 2022

For further information regarding this agenda and 
arrangements for the meeting, please contact Aadam 
Ahmed, Scrutiny & Democratic Services Officer, Ext 3056, 
Email Aadam.Ahmed@woking.gov.uk 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2021

221

MINUTES

OF A MEETING OF THE

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

held on 22 November 2021

Present: Cllr J R Sanderson (Chairman)
Cllr S Hussain (Vice-Chair)

Cllr J Brown
Cllr S Dorsett
Cllr A Kirby
Cllr R N Leach

Cllr R N Leach
Cllr E Nicholson
Cllr M I Raja

Also Present: Councillors A Azad, S Ashall, I Johnson, A Barker and C Kemp.

Absent: Councillor R Mohammed.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R Mohammed.

2. MINUTES 

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on Monday, 
18 October 2021 be approved and signed as a true and correct 
record.

3. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MINUTES OSC21-036 

The Chairman highlighted key items within the report on matters raised at previous 
meetings.  The meeting of the Committee in September 2021 had considered the Council’s 
Communications Plan and the Chairman invited the Scrutiny and Democratic Services 
Officer, Aadam Ahmed, to give an update. The Committee was advised that research was 
currently being undertaken with the intention of a Plan being in place towards the start of 
the next calendar year. 

The Chairman drew attention to item 4.1, data in the Performance and Financial Monitoring 
Information and noted that this would be addressed at the Committee’s meeting in January 
2022. 

The Chairman referred to the matters raised at the October meeting and Councillor 
Nicholson confirmed that the points raised in respect of the question of the safety and 
security of elected members had been addressed, with comprehensive information 
subsequently received.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2021

222

4. URGENT BUSINESS 

There was no urgent business to discuss. 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, Councillor Barker declared a non-
pecuniary interest in item 12 – Financial Review Monthly Update owing to a family member 
being employed by EY. The interest was such that speaking and voting were permissible.

6. WORK PROGRAMME OSC21-037 

The Committee received a report on the Work Programme for the coming year.  The 
Chairman noted that the Play Areas Provision item was still to be allocated to a Committee 
meeting, awaiting confirmation of the 2022/23 Calendar of Meetings by Council. 

The Chairman briefly went through items coming to the Committee in the January and 
February meetings, and drew attention to the Executive Forward Plan, highlighting those 
items recently added.

RESOLVED

That the Work Programme be noted. 

7. CELEBRATE WOKING REVIEW AND FORWARD PLAN OSC21-038 

Riette Thomas, Project Manager for Celebrate Woking, gave a presentation on the 
Celebrate Woking Programme which had begun in 2012 with the Olympics and Diamond 
Jubilee events.  The Covid-19 pandemic had presented an opportunity for the Council to 
reflect on what had been delivered successfully and how things could be restarted. 

An engagement exercise had been held to help develop the 2022 programme of events.  
The programme would be aimed at strengthening community spirit, promoting a positive 
image of Woking, increasing participation from within the community, maximising 
opportunities for economic development and creating a legacy. Riette highlighted the 
relevance of the previous slogan which was ‘Be Proud, Be Part Of It’. The Council would 
work with a wide range of local organisations to deliver the programme,  including schools, 
uniformed services, churches, women’s groups, residents and other community groups. 

Riette closed the presentation by noting that there was a tight deadline to deliver the 
programme and that what was being proposed was viable and less resource intensive than 
delivering a single event such as Party in the Park or the Food Festival.

Councillor Brown asked whether there were any plans to market the 2022 Football World 
Cup which would take place at the end of 2022. Riette advised that the big screen had only 
been hired for the Summer period but that other proposals could be considered, including 
possible work with pubs across the Borough.

Council Kirby asked whether it would be possible to consider creating a time capsule for 
the town as part of the celebration. Riette commented that there was a time capsule in the 

Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2021

223

Lightbox from 2012 which would be opened in 2060 though added that something similar 
could be considered for the year around the theme of the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee. 

Councillor Hussain asked whether there was anything planned around the villages in 
Woking. Riette stated that the Business Liaison team would work closely with businesses 
in the villages, hoping to replicate what would be happening in the Town Centre. Officers 
would also encourage the participation in the programme of any businesses with a royal 
connection. 

Councillor Dorsett asked whether local choirs, dance schools, operatic and dramatic 
societies had been approached to be involved in the programme, and suggested the 
possibility of livestreaming events in the town centre.  It was further suggested that the 
Summer Zone would benefit from an enhanced food and drinks offer. 

The Committee advised that the programme allowed for an element of flexibility to enable 
additional proposals to be considered.  Local organisations involved in the performing arts 
had been invited to participate in the programme, and follow up approaches would be 
made.  Caution was expressed that significantly expanding the scope of the programme 
would place pressure on the Council, and that local organisations could be encouraged to 
stage their own events.  The suggestions around livestreaming events and the Summer 
Zone would be explored by Officers.

In response to a specific question around the local Italian Community, the Committee was 
advised that efforts had been made to contact all local community groups  to encourage 
their participation.

Councillor Nicholson suggested the possibility of staging a competition for a ‘Platinum 
Queen’ and a ‘Platinum King’, and asked if younger age groups and frontline services 
would be involved in the programme.

The suggestion of a competition would be explored in consultation with Woking Shopping.  
In respect of younger children, Officers could write to local nurseries to explain how they 
could get involved and build their own legacy.  On the point of frontline services, Riette 
stated that the lighting of the beacon and Service of Thanksgiving were specifically for 
them.  The programme could be used as an opportunity to invite frontline service workers 
to attend the opening celebrations. 

The Chairman asked how local residents would be able to access information on the 
programme and how they could become involved.  Riette stated that it was intended to 
establish a webpage by the end of the year with information on the programme, including a 
Celebrate Woking calendar to which churches and community groups would be able to 
contribute. 

Councillor Kemp referred to the Food Festival and noted that, whilst it was a great event, 
not many local businesses engaged despite efforts by Officers.  Officers would continue to 
encourage the participation of local businesses in events such as those within the 
Celebrate Woking programme.  

The work of the Officers was acknowledged and the Committee thanked Riette for the 
detailed presentation. 

RESOLVED

That the Celebrate Woking Review and Forward Plan be noted.

Page 5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2021

224

8. FREEDOM LEISURE PERFORMANCE REVIEW OSC21-040 

The Portfolio Holder for Leisure Services, Councillor Kemp, introduced a report which 
reviewed the performance of Freedom Leisure.  The services provided had been 
significantly affected by the Covid Pandemic, with facilities having been open for only 20% 
of the normal operating times.  As a result, it had been necessary for Woking Borough 
Council to subsidise the service and forego the normal management fee.  The contract had 
been operated on an open book basis, in accordance with the guidance issued by Sport 
England. 

The Eastwood Leisure Centre had been opened by Freedom Leisure and more than 700 
members were now registered, with numbers continuing to increase.  It is anticipated that 
the Council will stop supporting the contract financially in the new year and it is estimated 
that the Eastwood Leisure Centre will break even in 2-3 years.

In response to a question prior to the meeting on proposed improvements to the phone 
service Councillor Kemp said that Freedom are working to develop a mobile phone 
application to improve the process. 

Freedom Leisure continued to receive support payments, paid one month in arrears based 
on actual operating costs, and the Committee was informed that the contract had always 
been run with a marginal profit margin. Due to low attendance, the contract was not 
currently viable; given the trends in the sector it was expected that the contract would 
return to a break-even point early in 2022.

A question was raised on the failures reported in respect of front of house services and  
Councillor Kemp advised that the reference related to the pool system.  Areas of the 
system had not been refurbished and would continue to be monitored, and repaired if 
necessary. 

The Committee noted that healthy food options had been trialled by Freedom Leisure and, 
whilst healthier options would be introduced, they were not proving to be as popular.  The 
Café areas provided a positive financial return which would be important to maintain and 
the impact of changes in the food offer would be monitored.  Membership options were 
discussed and Councillor Kemp reported that memberships were set out in the fees and 
charges.  Individuals could either sign up to a ‘Whole Woking’ membership or an individual 
centre membership.

Councillor Nicholson asked after the health and safety arrangements around the use of 
inflatables and Councillor Kemp advised that priority was given to the safe use of 
inflatables, with the arrangements constantly monitored.

RESOLVED

That the Freedom Leisure Performance Review be noted.

9. EXECUTIVE / OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE PROTOCOL OSC21-043 

The Chairman introduced the proposals for a protocol between the Committee and the 
Executive, outlining how the protocol would help support the Committee’s engagement with 
the Executive.  The report outlined the background research and actions which supported 
the development of the protocol. 

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2021

225

Councillor Azad, Leader of the Council, offered her support for the protocol and reiterated 
the Executive’s support of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s functions, stating that 
she was looking forward to working with the Committee. 

Councillor Dorsett stated that it would be beneficial to have clarification on the Call-in 
process, specifically regarding matters for determination and matters for recommendation.  
Councillor Dorsett also raised a concern that parts of the protocol could be open to misuse, 
particularly regarding referrals to the Executive.  Officers would provide clarification on the 
Call-in process outside of the meeting and the Committee was advised that, in respect of 
referrals to the Executive, the protocol reinforced the provisions within the Constitution.

Councillor Barker raised two typographical errors which would be addressed in the final 
version of the protocol.

RESOLVED

That the Executive/Overview and Scrutiny Protocol be agreed.

10. THE SCRUTINY TOOLKIT OSC21-044 

The Chairman introduced the report on the Council’s Scrutiny Toolkit and drew the 
Committee’s attention to the changes recently made, including reference to Officer Support 
details and the Budget Management Protocol.

RESOLVED

That the updated Scrutiny Toolkit be adopted.

11. TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REVIEW 2020/21 OSC21-039 

Leigh Clarke, Finance Director, introduced a report on the Treasury Management mid-year 
review.  The refinancing of short-term debt was raised and the Committee was advised that 
the Council was now through the period of uncertainty and that, as the rates fell, the 
Council would take out elements of long-term borrowing.  The Council had an ongoing 
need for borrowing and that Officers were currently assessing whether to continue with 
long-term borrowing or to undertake some short-term borrowing, recognising the need for 
balance in treasury management activity.

Councillor Kirby asked for clarification on the long term investments in joint ventures/ group 
companies/ external organisations (£1,103,781).  The Committee was advised that the 
figure included loans to group companies such as Thameswey or Joint Ventures such as 
Victoria Square, and that the monthly Performance and Financial Monitoring Information 
set out details of the individual loans.  Any borrowing other than that arranged for group 
companies and joint ventures was used towards the Council’s operational assets or 
investments in housing stock. 

Councillor Kirby asked whether the Council had an equity in the long-term investments in 
the group companies and was advised that there was share equity in the group companies. 

The Chairman referred to the Treasury Management Prudential Indicators and the 
borrowing limits and was advised that the limits were approved annually by Council, 
predominantly determined by the Investment Programme.  In the event any limits were 

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2021

226

exceeded, a report would have to be taken to Council.  The approved limits enabled 
Officers to arrange borrowing in advance of the proposed timescales on projects at a time 
when the rates were favourable.  The difference between the operational boundary and the 
authorised limit was effectively a buffer. 

The Chairman asked how the projections on rates influenced the decisions and processes 
to take out long-term and short-term loans.  Leigh stated that in 2020/2021 the Government 
had added a 1% margin on borrowing rates.  There had been a sector-wide expectation 
that the increase would be removed and the Council had taken a significant amount of 
short-term borrowing until such time.  For the current year, the Council’s borrowing strategy 
had been focussed on mitigating interest rate risk securing rates when they were 
favourable. 

Councillor Raja asked whether there was a ceiling limit for the short-term borrowing and 
whether the level of short-term borrowing could be raised higher and the long-term 
borrowing level lowered to benefit the Council.  Leigh stated that the Council had taken 
advantage of this in the previous year but highlighted the risk of short-term borrowing in 
terms of missing out on favourable long-term rates. 

Councillor Kirby asked for details of the management of long-term borrowing, including 
whether it solely consisted of 50 year annuity loans and how the Council avoided areas of 
uncertainty.  Leigh advised that Council’s approach was to use 50 year annuity loans to 
provide stability, the period matching the nature of the investments. 

RESOLVED

That the Treasury Management Mid-year Review be noted. 

12. FINANCIAL REVIEW MONTHLY UPDATE OSC21-041 

The Chairman introduced the report on the financial review monthly update.  The report 
provided the context of the review and the Committee noted that the work had 
commenced, with regular meetings being held with EY.  Whilst the work was moving 
forward quickly, it was too early yet to draw conclusions. 

The Chairman advised that he had met with the Lead Partner from EY to discuss the 
rationale for the Motion, bringing attention to the key elements within the Motion.

The timetable for the review was discussed, with concern expressed that enough time had 
been allocated before initial findings were to be reported.  The Committee was advised that 
the review was on track in accordance with the timetable and that the Team from EY had 
established regular meetings to explore areas of interest.

RESOLVED

That the Financial Review Monthly Update be noted.

13. HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE FUND SCRUTINY REVIEW OSC21-042 

Page 8



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2021

227

The report before the Committee set out the findings of a review undertaken by Internal 
Audit of the arrangements established by the Council in respect of the Housing 
Infrastructure Fund (HIF) project.  The review had been requested by the Committee in 
September 2021 and the request to employ Internal Audit’s resources had been supported 
by the Standards and Audit Committee.

The findings of the review were introduced by Giorgio Framalicco, Director of Planning, 
who advised that the Management Response to the audit report had been the acceptance 
of the recommendations and the dates for their implementation.  It was noted that the 
review had identified several risks which had not been included in the risk register for the 
project.

The Chairman noted that housing targets of the project, an area that was not covered by 
the existing HIF Oversight Panel, could be kept under review through the Committee, 
recognising that there were potential risks around the housing element, such as site 
acquisition and funding plans.

Councillor Johnson, Chairman of the HIF Oversight Panel, advised that the Panel’s remit 
was primarily focussed on the infrastructure element of the project, and noted that the 
Auditor’s report had touched on areas that the Panel had not considered, such as cost to 
date. Councillor Johnson noted the controversial nature of the project but stressed that 
there were overarching objectives which were to acquire a new railway arch, improve 
connectivity in and out of the town centre and provide additional homes.  There was a need 
for high level oversight to ensure the objectives were achieved within the timescale and 
financial parameters, and that adequate governance arrangements were in place.

Councillor Kirby considered that the Council needed to be clear on how best to run the 
complicated process of working with external bodies, stating that there were constructive 
lessons which could be learnt, including around applications for external funding. 

Councillor Azad, Leader of the Council, advised that one of difficulties in seeking external 
finding arose from the fact that the Council did not have control over the application 
timescale, with the Government normally limiting support to projects which are ready to go.  
Unless the parameters set by the Government were changed, it was difficult to put in place 
protocols that could work within any given timescales.  It was suggested that elements of 
the HIF project could be raised through the engagement programme taking place with 
residents.  Councillor Azad re-emphasised the point made earlier regarding the complexity 
of working on a project such as HIF with many external partners.

Councillor Nicholson asked whether the recommendations outlined in the report would be 
incorporated retrospectively into the Housing Infrastructure Fund project and into any future 
projects undertaken by the Council.  Giorgio explained that the findings of the Audit review 
would be referred to the Oversight Panel, noting that many of the recommendations would 
be actioned through the Oversight Panel.

Councillor Kirby welcomed the long-term thinking in the bidding process and reiterated his 
support for the oversight of the housing element of the project.  Councillor Kirby further 
suggested that the Council’s approach to bidding for funding could be reviewed.

In view of the support for suggestion that the housing element of the HIF scheme should be 
kept under review, the Chairman proposed the establishment of a task group with the 
specific objective of keeping oversight of the housing element of the scheme.  The 
suggestion of Councillor Kirby to review the bidding process could be explored further 
before being taken forward. 

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2021

228

The relationship between the infrastructure development and the housing element of the 
HIF scheme were noted, with the Committee being advised that, without the bridge and 
capacity improvements, the existing infrastructure would be unable to cope with the 
additional housing.  It was further noted that, regardless of the Covid-19 pandemic, it was 
unlikely that the need has changed, noting that traffic and usage of the town centre has 
returned to near pre-pandemic levels. 

RESOLVED

That (i) the Housing Infrastructure Fund Scrutiny Review be noted; and 

(ii) a HIF (Housing) Task Group be established to have oversight of 
the housing element of the Housing Infrastructure Fund project.

14. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION 

The Committee considered the most recent edition of the Performance and Financial 
Monitoring Information.  The Chairman noted that it was too early to see an improvement 
on the non-decent homes rate.

The Chairman raised a question on page 15 regarding the decrease of the recycling 
between July and August.  Geoff McManus, Director of Neighbourhood Services, advised 
that, in terms of recycling levels, the Council had been experiencing an increase in overall 
waste tonnage and reduced levels of recycling.  The income the Council received for 
mixed recycling had fortunately increased, helping to offset other costs.  The recycling rate 
would continue to affected by the Green Waste collections.  

The Chairman noted that the satisfaction rate on Street Cleaning and Landscaping had 
fallen between April and July and that the level of short term borrowing has decreased.

RESOLVED

That the Performance and Financial Monitoring Information (September 
2021) be noted. 

15. FINANCE TASK GROUP UPDATE OSC21-045 

The Chairman introduced the update report on the work of the Finance Task Group and 
highlighted that the proposed extension of the loan to Greenfield School had been 
considered by the Executive at its meeting on 18 November 2021.

RESOLVED

The Finance Task Group Update be noted.

16. HOUSING TASK GROUP UPDATE OSC21-046 

Councillor Barker introduced the update report of the Housing Task Group, which provided 
an insight into the work of the Task Group.  The attention of the Committee was drawn to 
the work being undertaken to bring empty homes back into use. Councillor Barker further 

Page 10



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 22 November 2021

229

drew attention to the progress being made on the Housing Services being brought back in-
house, noting that it was currently in the tendering process.

Councillor Barker stated that the Members of the Task Group would be considering the 
housing in the Victoria Square Development at their next meeting.  Native, the company 
responsible for letting out the accommodation, would be attending to provide a progress 
update.

Councillor Dorsett welcomed the positive report on the delivery of affordable housing and 
asked whether future reports could include details of what affordable housing was being 
provided and where.  Councillor Barker undertook to explore the possibility, though noted 
that some of the figures were yet to be confirmed.

Councillor Kirby suggested that it would be useful to publish the reconciliation of how many 
new affordable homes are coming in and what tenures are available to help residents 
understand the progress of the work.

RESOLVED 

That the Housing Task Group Update be noted.

17. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TASK GROUP UPDATE OSC21-047. 

The Chairman introduced the update report on the work of the Economic Development 
Task Group, highlighting the key points.  Councillor Dorsett suggested further information 
could be included in future reports, a suggestion welcomed by the Chairman.

RESOLVED

That the Economic Development Task Group Update be noted.

The meeting commenced at 7.00 pm
and ended at 9.34 pm

Chairman: Date:

Page 11





OSC22-001

THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 24 JANUARY 2022

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MINUTES

Executive Summary

This report provides an update on matters arising from the previous meetings of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.The details summarise the progress made on achieving the desired outcomes 
from decisions taken by the Committee and requests from individual Elected Members. Once an 
action has been closed and the outcome reported to the Committee it will be removed from future 
reports.

Actions arising from the Committee are managed through the Council’s Action Management system 
which was developed to capture and monitor the actions arising from (i) meetings of the Council and 
(ii) Internal Audit Reviews.

This is the a regular report that is brought the Committee and covers the actions identified at the 
previous meetings.The next version of this report, listing any actions previously identified together 
with the progress achieved shall be brought to the next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 21 February 2022. 

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE That the report be noted.

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation set out above.

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Aadam Ahmed, Scrutiny and Democratic Services Officer
Email: Aadam.ahmed@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3056

Contact Person: Aadam Ahmed, Scrutiny and Democratic Services Officer
Email: Aadam.ahmed@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3056

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad
Email: cllrayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 14 January 2022

REPORT ENDS

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



OSC22-001

Update on Actions Arising from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

13 September 2021

1.0 Agenda Item 7 - Work Programme

Action To advise whether the review of play areas could be moved forward from early 2023 to late 2022 following a 
request by the Chairman of the Committee.

Progress The review of play areas will come to the Committee meeting on 21 November 2022.

Responsible Person Geoff McManus

1.1

Status Closed

2.0 Agenda Item 9 – Overview and Scrutiny Guidance by the MHCLG

Action A communications plan be established on the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee which would 
promote the work of the Committee within the resources available.

Progress Research has been completed and a strategy will be consulted on with the Communications Team. 

Responsible Person Aadam Ahmed

2.1

Status Open

P
age 14



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

3.0 Agenda Item 11 – Performance and Financial Monitoring Information.

Action To consider whether future Green Books can provide data for refuse collections made on time for each type of 
refuse, as requested by Councillor Kirby.

Progress

We currently provide performance data consistently with other partners which normally reflects a small 
proportion of missed collections relative to the scale of the operation across the borough each week. 
As part of the waste management service report scheduled for January 2022 officers will be in attendance to 
talk through the processes in place to monitor waste collections and consider any further reporting information 
which could be made available for members.

Responsible Person Geoff McManus

3.1

Status Open

P
age 15



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

Update on Actions Arising from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

22 November 2021

1.0 Agenda Item 7 – Celebrate Woking Review and Forward Plan

Action Find out if any of the feedback and suggestions given by the Committee was taken forward in the Celebrate 
Woking Proposals

Progress
Riette Thomas confirmed that some feedback and suggestions had been incorporated into the proposals. She 
is now in the process of speaking to community groups and partners and hopes to have a more detailed 
programme and list of community events by the end of January. 

Responsible Person Aadam Ahmed

1.0

Status Closed

2.0 Agenda Item  9 – Overview and Scrutiny Protocol

Action

Clarification on the following points: 
1. Can an item for recommendation be called in?
2. Can a decision be called in more than once (if not acted upon by the Executive).2.1

Progress The current advice from Officers is that at present the protocol to be followed for Call-ins has to be accordance 
with the Constitution.  The Constitution is silent on both these points.  The questions may therefore require further 

P
age 16



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

debate by the Council and any suggested amendments could be incorporated into the next review of the 
Constitution.

Responsible Person Aadam Ahmed / Frank Jeffrey

Status Closed

Action Correction of grammatical errors in the protocol document.

Progress The errors raised at the meeting on 22 November 2021 have been corrected.

Responsible Person Aadam Ahmed 
2.2

Status Closed

3.0 Agenda Item 13 – Housing Infrastructure Fund Scrutiny Review

Action An Overview and Scrutiny Task Group be established to look at the housing element of the Housin Infrastructure 
Fund.

Progress The Terms of Reference have been circulated to Members and an informal meeting of the Task Group was held 
on 20 January 2022. A verbal update will be provided.

Responsible Person Aadam Ahmed/ Giorgio Framalicco/ Frank Jeffrey

3.1

Status Open

P
age 17



Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes

P
age 18



OSC22-002

Overview and Scrutiny
Work Programme

This Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is published with the purpose of assisting the Council in its 
overview and scrutiny role.  The Work Programme covers the following areas:

o Items for consideration at future meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

o Any Scrutiny Review Topics proposed by Members of the Council for inclusion on the Work 
Programme.

o Any topics identified for pre-decision scrutiny.

o The draft forward programme of work for the Executive.

o Details of the current Task Groups under the Committee’s remit.
The Work Programme is designed to assist the Council with its overview and scrutiny role by providing 
Members with an indication of the current workload, subjects to be considered for review and items which 
the Executive expects to consider at its future meetings, so that matters can be raised beforehand and/or 
consultations undertaken with a Member of the Executive prior to the relevant meeting.

Any changes to the Work Programme since it was last published have been highlighted in green.

The Committee
Chairman: Councillor J Sanderson

Vice-Chairman: Councillor S Hussain
Councillor J Brown Councillor R Leach
Councillor S Dorsett Councillor R Mohammed
Councillor A Kirby Councillor E Nicholson

Councillor M I Raja

2021/22 Committee Dates
7 June 2021 22 November 2021
12 July 2021 24 January 2022
13 September 2021 21 February 2022
18 October 2021 21 March 2022

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE That the report be noted.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation set out above.

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Councillor James Sanderson
Email: cllrjames.sanderson@woking.gov.uk

Contact Person: Aadam Ahmed, Scrutiny and Democratic Services Officer
Email: Aadam.ahmed@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3056

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad
Email: cllrayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 14 January 2022

REPORT ENDS

Page 20



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Page 21



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Suggested Additions to the Work Programme

Following the last meeting of the Committee, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman provided Officers with a 
list of items for consideration over the coming year.  Where possible, these have been added to the Work 
Programme.  Set out below are any ideas which have been requested but are yet to be included against 
a specific meeting of the Committee. 

Decision to be Taken Proposed by Officer Comment

Review of Performance and 
Financial Monitoring 
Information

Chairman and Vice Chairman The Performance and Financial 
Monitoring Information will be 
subject to a review following 
agreement of a new Corporate 
Plan at the meeting of the 
Executive on 3rd February 
2022.  The Green Book should 
report on the Corporate 
Priorities of the Council and the 
Key Performance Indicators 
that support these priorities. 

The purpose of it going through 
O&S is to get input into what 
information should be reported 
to the Executive, aligned to the 
strategic priorities of the 
Council.

Quarterly Noise Complaints 
Update

Chairman and Vice Chairman Following the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee meeting on 
7 June 2021 the Committee 
resolved that a quartetly report 
is prepared to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee providing 
further details of noise 
complaints received. 

Work is currently underway to 
confirm the date that the 
Committee can receive this 
report. 

Page 22



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Page 23



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

The Work Programme 2021/22

Set out over the coming pages are the items programmed for consideration over the 2021/22 Municipal 
Year.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 21 February 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Freedom of Information Requests Annual Report.  To review the statistics and requests that 
proceed to the Information Commissioners Office.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Frank Jeffrey
Natalie Khan

2.3 Overview of Complaints Received and Contract Review Annual Report.  A review of the 
complaints received over the past year and identify any trends. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Joanne McIntosh
Adam Browne

2.4 Enterprise M3.  Stephen Martin, Operations Director of Enterprise M3,will attend the meeting to 
provide an update of the Organisation’s work.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2.5 Lessons Learnt through the Covid-19 Response.

Page 24



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme
Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Geoff McManus

2.6 Woking Borough Council’s Support of Local Businesses During Covid-19.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None Economic Development Action 
Plan

Chris Norrington

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 25



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 21 March 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Safer Woking Partnership – Community Safety Plan.  The Police and Justice Act 2006 gave 
local authorities responsibility for considering crime and disorder matters.  In 2010 the Committee 
agreed that the Safer Woking Partnership Plan would be brought forward annually for scrutiny.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Camilla Edmiston

2.3 Annual Report of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman

2.4 Annual Update on Climate Change. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Lara Beattie

2.5 Family Centres – Service Delivery Plan. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Adam Thomas

2.6 Review of use of Lakeview Community Centre.  The Committee to receive an update on 
planned projects and activities at the Lakeview Community Centre.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Adam Thomas

Page 26



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 27



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 23 May 2022

1 – Matters for Consideration

1.1 Election of Chairman.  For the Committee to elect a Chairman for the Municipal Year.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None None

1.2 Election of Chairman.  For the Committee to elect a Vice-Chairman for the Municipal Year.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None None

1.3 Appointments to Working Groups and Task Groups.  For the Committee to appoint Members 
to Working Groups and Task Groups.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None None

Page 28



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 6 June 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Introduction to Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  To receive a short briefing on the roles 
and responsibilities of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2.3 Survey of Leisure Facility Users.  To consider the arrangements for the survey of Leisure 
Facility Users to be undertaken over the Summer.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Steve May

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 29



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 11 July 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 30



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 12 September 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Guide to Scrutiny of Risk and Commercialisation.  The guide to scrutiny of risk and 
commercialisation, published by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, will be recieved by the 
committee. 

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Giorgio Framalicco
Leigh Clarke

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 31



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 17 October 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 32



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 21 November 2022

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2.2 Celebrate Woking 2022/2023 Review and Forward Plan  For the Committee to receive the the 
latest review of Celebrate Woking and the Forward Plan

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Riette Thomas

2.3 Play Areas Provision  For the Committee to receive the the latest review of the Play Areas 
Provision.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Geoff McManus

2.2 Freedom Leisure Performance Review For the Committee to receive the the latest review of 
Freedom Leisure.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Steve May

2.2 Treasury Management Mid-Year Review  For the Committee to receive the Mid-Year Treasury 
Management Review

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Leigh Clarke

Page 33



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 34



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 23 January 2023

1 – Performance Management

1.1 Performance & Financial Monitoring Information.  For the Committee to consider the current 
publication of the Performance & Financial Monitoring Information (Green Book)

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2 – Matters for Consideration

2.1 Work Programme.  For the Committee to receive the updated Work Programme.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Aadam Ahmed

2.3 Joint Waste Management Performance Review  For the Committee to receive the the latest 
Performance Review of Joint Waste Management.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Geoff McManus

3 – Task Group Updates

3.1 Task Group Update.  To receive an update from any meetings of the three Task Groups under 
the remit of the Committee.

Consultation Background Documents Contact Person/Team

None None Chairman of each Task Group

Page 35



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

The Draft Executive Work Programme

The following list sets out the draft forward programme of work for the Executive over the coming year.  
The programme is subject to additions and alterations and will be updated for future meetings of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The purpose of the list is to enable the Members of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to identify those items they would like to scrutinise under the Committee’s function of 
pre-decision scrutiny.  The list includes those items for recommendation to Council as well as those for 
determination by the Executive.

Executive – 20 January 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Notice of Motion – Cllr M Whitehand – Women’s safety in public places

2) Notice of Motion – Cllr E Nicholson – Male violence against women

3) Notice of Motion – Cllr A-M Barker – Goldsworth Park lake footpath lighting

4) Review of the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)

5) Review of the Outlook, Amenity and Daylight Supplementary Planning Document

6) Review of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Areas Avoidance Strategy

7) Phase 2 - Infrastructure Capacity Study and Delivery Plan (IDP) – East of the Borough and 
Borough-wide Study

8) Housing Assistance Policy

9) Community Engagement and Consultation

10) Update on the Housing Service

11) Tackling Climate Change Locally

12) Recommendation from Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Executive/Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Protocol

13) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

14) Property Management (PART II)

Page 36



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Executive – 3 February 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), General Fund, Service Plans, Budgets and Prudential 
Indicators 2022-23

2) Housing Revenue Account Budgets 2022-23

3) Investment Programme 2021-22 to 2025-26

4) Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategies

5) Surrey 2050 Place Ambition

6) Surrey Minerals and Waste Local Plan – Issues and Options

7) Monitoring Reports - Projects

8) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Executive – 24 March 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Corporate Plan

2) Directorate Plans

3) Safeguarding Policy

4) Animal Welfare Policy

5) Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 – Annual Monitoring Report

6) Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

7) Write off of Irrecoverable Debt

8) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Page 37



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Executive – 16 June 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Treasury Management Annual Report 2021-22

2) Risk Management and Business Continuity Annual Report

3) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

4) Monitoring Reports - Projects

Executive – 14 July 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Equalities Annual Report - 2022

2) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Executive – 8 September 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Executive – 6 October 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Confidentiality Protocol Annual Report

2) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

3) Monitoring Reports - Projects

Page 38



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Executive – 17 November 2022

Matters for Consideration

1) Thameswey Business Plans

2) Draft Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and General Fund Budget 2023-24

3) Draft Housing Revenue Account Budget Update 2023-24

4) Draft Investment Programme 2022-23 to 2026-27

5) Performance and Financial Monitoring Information

Executive – 8 December 2022 (Special Meeting)

Matters for Consideration

1) Grants for Voluntary and Community Organisations 2023/24

Page 39



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Page 40



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Current Task Groups Responsible to the Committee

The table below provides a list of current Task Groups established by the Committee, including an 
indication of the resource requirements and the anticipated completion date.  Updates on the progress of 
individual Task Groups are included elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda.

Economic Development Task Group

Remit: The Economic Development Task Group shall comprise seven Members of the 
Council representing all Groups on the Council based on proportionality.  The 
Elected Members to be appointed annually by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in May.  The Portfolio Holder for Promoting the Local Economy shall 
be an ex-officio member. 
Members of the Task Group will be expected to gain the views of Councillors/ 
Officers/ other representatives with a view to reporting those views to the Task 
Group.
Members of the Task Group may also be charged with specific areas to research 
and report back on to the Task Group.
Members of the Task Group may be expected to present proposals to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and, where necessary, prepare written 
reports.
Substitutes may be appointed when necessary.

Membership: Councillors Ali, Barker, Davis, Johnson, Mohammed, Roberts and Whitehand.

Resources: Officer and Councillor time.

Date Established: 11.03.09

Completion Date: Ongoing

Finance Task Group

Remit: The Task Group has been established as a Standing Task Group to review 
financial issues as identified either by itself or the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  The Task Group will receive financial information, including reports 
to the Executive, to enable it to undertake effective scrutiny of the financial 
performance of the Council.

The Task Group will receive reports on areas such as Treasury Management, 
Budget Process and Financial Forecast, Statement of Accounts, Investment 
Programme, Review of Fees and Charges, General Fund Budget, Update on 
Commercial Rents, Update on Irrecoverable Debt, and matters arising from the 
Green Book.  Its Work Programme will be received at each Task Group meeting.  

Membership: Councillors Azad, Aziz, Davis, Johnson, Kirby, Sanderson and Whitehand

Resources: Officer and Councillor time.

Date Established: 25.05.06

Completion Date: Ongoing

Page 41



The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Housing Task Group

Remit: The Housing Task Group shall comprise seven Members of the Council 
representing all Groups on the Council based on proportionality.  The Elected 
Members to be appointed annually by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
May. 
Members of the Task Group will be expected to gain the views of Councillors/ 
Officers/ Portfolio Holder / External Advisors and other representatives with a 
view to reporting those views to the Task Group.
Members of the Task Group may also be charged with specific areas to research 
and report back on to the Task Group. Any investigation requiring funding would 
normally be expected to be part of the existing housing budget. Offsite visits will 
be ad hoc. Requests for additional funds for the purpose would be submitted to 
the Portfolio Holder.
Members of the Task Group may be expected to present proposals to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and, where necessary, prepare written 
reports.

Membership: Councillors Aziz, Barker, Bridgeman, Dorsett, Harlow, Hughes, Kirby and 
Whitehand.

Resources: Officer and Councillor time.

Date Established: 25.05.06

Completion Date: Ongoing

Page 42



OSC21-006

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 24 JANUARY 2022

COMPREHENSIVE STATEMENT

Executive Summary

The Council commissioned a full, independent and comprehensive review of all the assets 
and liabilities of the Council and all companies of which it has an interest as a component part 
of the Medium-Term Financial Strategy and integrated service and financial planning. 

This report provides the independent Comprehensive Statement and a response to 
Observations and Risks highlighted in the statement.

The Independent Consultants, EY, commissioned to undertake the work will be present at the 
meeting in order to introduce and respond to any points in their statement.

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE That:

1. The Comprehensive Statement is received
2. The response to the Observations and Risks highlighted in the 

statement be noted
3. The Committee provides the Executive with their observations to 

inform the Councils strategic plans and Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation(s) set out above.

Background Papers: None.

Reporting Person: Councillor James Sanderson

Email: cllrjames.sanderson@woking.gov.uk

Contact Person: Leigh Clarke, Director of Finance

Email: leigh.clarke@woking.gov.uk, 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad

Email: cllrayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker

Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

Date Published: 14th January 2022

Page 44



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

1. OVERVIEW

1.1 Woking Borough Council is an ambitious and forward-thinking Local Authority that has 
made significant investment into regeneration of the borough through residential, retail, 
office and leisure activity. In addition, the Council has invested to acquire commercial 
estate that brings significant income back to the council in order to enhance the services 
delivered to support the communities of Woking.

1.2 This level of ambition requires, and has taken, a bold 50-year vision and investment plan 
for the borough. The Council has committed, to this investment plan in areas where it can 
secure long-term improvements. The ambition recognises that it comes with a degree of 
risk and requires a high level of support in the short-term in order to build up sustainable 
operations that support the delivery of regeneration outcomes.

1.3 In support of the position the Council has taken, it has developed an integrated service 
and financial planning approach through the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS); 
the development of a Corporate Plan (and hierarchy of planning) and a Community 
Engagement programme that is targeting developing and maintaining effective 
connections between the Council and its communities.

2. RESOLVE OF COUNCIL / NOTICE OF MOTION

2.1 At the meeting of Council on 29th July 2021, it approved the MTFS report and within this 
agreed for an independent comprehensive assessment of the Council’s assets and 
liabilities as part of aligning the Fit for the Future Programme with the Council’s accounts 
position.

2.2 At the same meeting a Notice of Motion was presented by Councillor Barker. Councillor 
Azad moved an amendment to this, which was considered and agreed. 

2.3 The following Notice of Motion then formed the basis of the independently commissioned 
review to satisfy both the Notice of Motion and resolve in the MTFS report.

“This council calls for a full, independent and comprehensive review of all the assets 
and liabilities of Woking Borough Council; and all companies in which it has an interest 
whether by means of shareholding (however large or small) or any other means of 
influencing the activities of said company.  The report is to contain a comprehensive 
Statement identifying, amongst other things:

o      An independent reviewer’s assessment of the current net realizable value of each 
of the assets

o      Full details of all borrowings including their terms and conditions

o      Full details of outstanding contractual obligations involving future income to be 
received and future expenditure to be incurred

o      Details of any fixed or floating charges on any assets

o      Full details of any grants, loans or other contracts which contain performance 
conditions which, if not met, would incur financial penalties for the Council or any of its 

Page 45



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

companies. Council officers should work with the Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee to appoint an appropriate independent reviewer

The reviewer must:

o      Be allowed full and unfettered access to all the documents and information required

o      Provide monthly progress reports to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

o      Complete the review and the full report by the end of December 2021.”

3. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS)

3.1 Through 2021 the Council has been reporting on its Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) which can be referenced in the MTFS reports to the following meetings of the 
Executive:

25th March 2021 http://mg-intranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=951

15th July 2021 http://mg-intranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=1196

7th October 2021 http://mg-intranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=1198

18th November 2021 http://mg-
intranet/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?XXR=0&M=11&DD=2021&ACT=Go

3.2 The MTFS has recognised key financial challenges and opportunities, in the short (1 year) 
to medium (5 years) terms, facing the Council. Addressing these informs the strategic 
financial planning for the Council. The following bullet points are extracts of the key issues 
that have been expressly referenced in the MTFS reporting and financial strategy through 
the year. They reflect the specific macro and micro economic and financial performance 
factors that are being managed through the integrated service and financial planning 
approach and the developing Fit for the Future programme:

 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants produce an index of 
Financial Resilience to support Local Authority good financial management. Of 
particular note and relevance for Woking Borough Council are:

 comparably high levels of borrowing and interest payments to support our 
investment and regeneration programmes 

 a strong financial position in respect of the level and sustainability of 
reserves and the ratio of fees and charges to service expenditure 

It is this reliance on alternative income sources, seen by the index as a 
strength, which has increased the financial pressure during the pandemic 
as income has been downwardly affected.

 The financial position of the Council is significantly reliant on income from car parking and 
commercial rents contributing some £8m and £22m towards the Council’s total income. 
This income has been used to fund a wide range of services for the communities of 
Woking that would not be possible to fund if this income was not generated. 

Page 46

http://mg-intranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=951
http://mg-intranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=1196
http://mg-intranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=1198
http://mg-intranet/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?XXR=0&M=11&DD=2021&ACT=Go
http://mg-intranet/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?XXR=0&M=11&DD=2021&ACT=Go


Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

There has been a significant loss of this income in 2020/21 and the first two quarters of 
2021/22. Whilst it can be assumed that this income will recover over time, it may take 
some time before pre-Covid income levels are achieved. A full recovery is assumed to 
extend beyond the four years of this MTFS. On this basis, a prudent approach is required 
that secures savings in the short and medium term to reduce and remove the need to 
deplete reserves.

 The 2021/22 budget and forecasts to 2024/25 set out in the March 2021 MTFS assumed 
the use of almost £25m of revenue reserves to support the provision of services. This 
requirement to use reserves is significantly due to the forecast reduction in income and 
returns from investments in the Woking economy. While the general economy is expected 
to slowly recover from the pandemic, the performance of specific sectors will need to be 
monitored in order to inform our forecasts for returns from our current assets and 
opportunities for our future Investment Programme.

The use of reserves as forecast would leave the Council with minimal balances left at the 
end of the forecast period, and with a budget deficit still to be met. This report identifies a 
minimum level of reserves that needs to be in place at the end of this period in order to 
ensure that the Council’s finances are in a robust position, that there is an appropriate 
provision for the management of risks and ability to invest further into service 
modernisation and opportunities that support economic and social regeneration for the 
benefit of the communities of Woking.

 To drive out and maximise the benefits from investments and ensure that the Council 
remains a lean, efficient and digitally modern Council, it has established a Fit for the 
Future Programme, which brings together both existing plans and activity and introduces 
a coordinated programme of change.

The key components of the programme are being developed in order to bring forward 
areas of search for efficiencies and savings which will enable the Council to manage its 
resources over the medium term and align these to the priority outcomes identified in the 
corporate plan.

Bringing this together into a programme of activity will require some additional investment 
on an “invest to save” basis to ensure we have the required business and performance 
intelligence and access to best practice.

Additional resource is required in the initial key areas of transformation and digital; 
community engagement; commercial and finance business partnering. For 2021/22 this 
will be managed within the current approach to managing staffing budgets and 
establishment. Beyond the current financial years any requirement for additional resource 
will be incorporated into the MTFS process which will align priorities with the resources 
available. It is recommended that a £500k budget is established to enable external 
resources to be made available to support these programmes. Where possible the 
Council will fund this through use of ‘Flexible use of Capital Receipts’ which allows income 
from the sale of property to be applied to transformation activities. 

 A review is being commissioned for the governance of Victoria Square to ensure the 
Council can transition its client management focus from the development and build phase 
to operation and delivery phase. In addition, the strategic interface between the Council 

Page 47



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

and Thameswey is being developed to reflect the changes the Council is making to 
corporate and integrated service and financial planning. 

3.3 The Comprehensive Statement, commissioned through the Notice of Motion, needs to be 
considered in the context of the regeneration vision that the Council has for the Borough 
and the role the Council has taken in the delivery of this vision through being the key 
investor. 

4. COMMISSIONED REVIEWS

4.1 The reporting on the MTFS to Executive has highlighted that the Council has established 
a significant performance reset over 2021/22 through the emerging Fit for the Future 
programme. 

This is in order to establish a framework to oversee the delivery of efficiencies while 
continuing to place communities at the core of decision-making through extensive 
community engagement plans. In addition, the programme seeks to deliver a modern way 
of working that is in tune with the priorities of residents and the opportunities the Borough 
offers.

4.2 An overview of the approach to the performance reset can be found in the MTFS report to 
the Executive on 7th October 2021 http://mg-
intranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=1198. The key elements of the approach 
incorporate:

o New Corporate Plan
o Review of Governance
o Project Management Assurance
o Risk Management Strategy
o Community Engagement
o Strengthening the role of O+S
o Workforce engagement
o Digital and Transformation
o Strengthening Partnership Working 
o Financial Review and Insight

As a component part of the Fit for the Future Programme and approach to providing a 
performance reset, the Council wanted both a comprehensive understanding and 
assessment of current performance and strategic insights to inform the financial strategies 
of the Council.

4.4 The Council is entrepreneurial and commercially orientated and has made significant 
commitment and investment into assets and activity within the borough in order to support:

  regeneration. 

 the supply of quality and affordable homes.

 economic development; and 

 Council financial independency and resilience. 

Page 48

http://mg-intranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=1198
http://mg-intranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=1198


Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

4.5 Following a competitive tender process, the independent consultants Ernst Young (EY) 
were commissioned to undertake 2 (two) pieces of financial review:

 A Comprehensive Statement that addresses the requirements of the Notice of Motion 
(see section 2 of this report above)

 A series of Financial Review and Insights –The purpose of these is to bring 
independently researched insights into:
o Socio economic factors that influence medium – long term financial strategies
o Current financial performance benchmarking 
o Indicators of financial resilience 

4.6 This report covers the Comprehensive Statement which will form part of the MTFS, 
General Fund, Service Plans, Budgets and Prudential Indicators 2022-23 report to the 3rd 
February 2022 meeting of the Executive.

4.7 The series of Financial Review and Insights are in the process of being drafted and will be 
used to inform the Medium-Term Financial Strategy beyond 2022/23. The Insights are a 
joint and collaborative endeavour as they incorporate the vision and strategy work 
produced by the Council alongside independent market insight and benchmarking from 
EY, to inform what the areas of risk and opportunity for the Council are. The Insights should 
both challenge and validate the Councils approach, recognising the challenges and 
opportunities in the short, medium and long term. The Insights are targeted to be complete 
in order to inform the MTFS report to 24th March 2022 meeting of the Executive. 

5. COMPREHENSIVE STATEMENT

5.1 Attached at Appendices 1 and 2 to this report is:

Appendix 1 Comprehensive Statement – Member Briefing

Appendix 2 Comprehensive Statement Report

5.2 These appendices have been independently produced by the consultants EY and they 
will be in attendance at the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny to introduce their 
Statement and Report and respond to any questions about their statements and 
observations.

5.3 Comprehensive Statement – Response 

5.3.1 Overview:

We would initially like to express our thanks to EY and specifically the lead consultants 
on this work for their due diligence and for both the wider Local Government 
experience and national economic insights that they were able to bring.

As the Comprehensive Statement review is on the current state of finances and 
financial performance of the Council, as largely reported through published accounts, 
it was pleasing to see that the Comprehensive Statement – Member Briefing did not 
highlight any individual key statements of fact or observations that were surprising 
to the Council.

Page 49

http://mg-intranet/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=14529&PlanId=149
http://mg-intranet/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=14529&PlanId=149


Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

The Comprehensive Statement represents the financial matters of the Council arising 
from the decisions the Council has taken to pursue the regeneration vision for the 
Borough, undertake the key investment role to drive this regeneration with purpose 
and generate additional income sources for the Council that both enable it to support 
the regeneration activity and enhance the level of service provision to the communities 
of Woking.

However, whilst the Comprehensive Statement may not have highlighted any new 
individual statements of fact, it does provide significant added value and benefit for the 
Council and emphasises a number of issues that the Council should give increased 
focus and attention to. In this context the Comprehensive Statement:

 Provides assurance around the Council’s asset valuations approach and short-
term cash and investment positions 

 Recognises the Council’s regeneration focus and the alignment of financial 
strategies to this

 By bringing the Asset Position; Borrowing Position; Financial Interests and 
Contractual Obligations together in one focused statement it gives additional 
insights that should be recognised and used to develop strategic financial priorities

 Provides insight that is relevant for the Council’s Fit for the Future Programme and 
specifically the need for the Council to move with greater pace and certainty 
around:

o Adopting a stronger strategic approach to the management of assets 
o Development of its commercial and strategic finance capacity and expertise 

in order to drive out the returns from our investments. 
o Completing the review of Governance of Companies, the strategic 

alignment between the Council and Thameswey group and the intelligent 
client capability retained within the Council. This review should address the 
specific risks highlighted for Thameswey Energy Limited (TEL) and 
Thameswey Milton Keynes Limited (TCMK)

o Strengthening the oversight of Town Centre management including the 
strategic management of the assets 

o Continuing to develop and strengthen the Medium and Long-Term 
Financial Strategy and the strategic management of reserves within this

5.3.2 Asset Position

Reflections:

The Council does have a net asset position (assets valued greater than liabilities) 
underpinned by reasonable asset accounting policies and sufficient useable reserves 
in the short term to manage financial shocks

The Council’s assets are exposed to conditions in the retail and office market and as 
one would expect given the prevailing impacts of the pandemic, the balance sheet 
value of assets has expectedly been valued down. This revaluation is at a point in time, 
is a snapshot rather than a narrative, and is due to reductions in commercial rent 
income in the valuation year.

The Council has made provision for reduced commercial rent income, as has been 
reported through the MTFS and referenced in section 3 of this report and the reserves 

Page 50



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

strategy has been established to respond to our forecasts of the implications of the 
downturn in the economy over the MTFS period.

5.3.3 Borrowing Position

Reflections:

The Council has a high level of borrowing (3rd highest local authority) as a result of the 
role it has taken to invest in the regeneration of Woking. The Treasury Management 
costs of this borrowing have a significant impact on the General Fund which means 
that there is a high dependency on the wider office and retail economy and the 
performance of assets and companies the Council has invested in to meet loan 
servicing costs. This represents a large proportion of the Council’s General Fund 
budget that is a fixed cost.

The Council’s borrowing has been for regeneration and inside the Woking Borough. It 
has not taken borrowing for investments outside of the Borough or simply for 
commercial return. Borrowing has been undertaken through PWLB and at attractive 
fixed term rates which secure against future interest rate movements.

There are no covenants on the Council’s assets and borrowing.

5.3.4 Financial Interests

Reflections:

The Council’s investments into companies are for long-term benefit over short-term 
gain. The companies exist to support the regeneration priorities of the borough and 
this recognises that they operate with an expectation that they make lower commercial 
margins. Success is measured more by the benefits they deliver for the communities 
of Woking rather than pure company financial performance. This can be seen in the 
company ratio analysis on page 24 and the following pages of the Comprehensive 
Statement report. It also needs to be recognised that Thameswey TDL develops assets 
for the other Thameswey companies and works to lower agreed margins to reflect this 
group relationship. 

What follows this strategy for regeneration is a focus on companies’ medium to long 
term business plans with the short-term positions being managed through the Councils 
wider MTFS and Investment Programme.  

This strategy, however, does require stronger Council oversight and governance of 
company performance. The company financial viability assessment ratios undertaken 
by EY highlights that in the short term, for all material investments, there is sufficient 
turnover to meet short term loan repayments. It equally highlights the impact of making 
investment for the long term over short term gain as can be seen by the losses 
recorded in the latest statement of accounts. 

The risks in the medium term associated with Thameswey Central Milton Keynes 
(TCMK) require a specific joint response between the Council and Thameswey that is 
over and above the overall oversight of the Council’s borrowing and financial interest 
positions.

Page 51



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

The Council has appropriate diversification of short-term investments ensuring it is not 
overexposed to risk and had sufficient funds to meet its cashflow requirements

5.3.5 Contractual Obligations

Reflections:

The Council has appropriate systems in place to ensure that grants are administered 
appropriately, and reimbursements are correct.

5.4 The table below provides an initial response to the key statements and observations 
in the Comprehensive Statement  - Member Briefing and areas of challenge and risk 
highlighted within the Comprehensive Statement Report. 

Section 5.3.1 of this report highlights the areas where the Council will give an increased 
focus and attention to arising from the Comprehensive Statement work. These are 
highlighted in bold in the table below.

Where the key statements and observations provide assurance and affirmation of 
the Councils current position and approach, these are received without specifically 
acknowledging or responding to them within this response to the Comprehensive 
Statement..

Page 52



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

Key Issue or Risk Current Approach and Plans Actions following the Statement 

There is a Risk that commercial properties 
continue to be devalued as a result of 
reductions in commercial rent income, this 
would dilute the councils balance sheet. 
Where this does occur, the council need to 
consider whether continued revaluations 
indicate a need to reassess asset use to 
meet regeneration objectives. 

There is an asset management strategy that is 
in development and a review of the Property 
Services Operating Model underway.

The Fit for the Future programme has identified 
a need to develop the commercial management 
capacity and capability in the Council and how 
we are organised.

The Councils significant investment holding of 
retail and office estate does support its role in 
regeneration as it is able, through an asset 
management strategy, to strategically review 
how these assets contribute to the priorities of 
the borough.

The delivery of the asset management 
strategy will be escalated as a key project, 
reporting to CLT as the Corporate Programme 
Board, alongside a quarterly report on the 
performance of retail and office assets.

Given its significant asset holdings in the town 
centre, the asset management strategy will 
need to be guided by a clear vision and strategy 
for the town centre that is informed by up-to-
date market insight and intelligence. This will 
enable the council to maximise the use of its 
assets to get a balance between financial return 
and place making outcomes.

The Risk is accepted and will be considered 
through the Council’s Risk Management Policy 
to determine risk treatment and further 
mitigations

A sizeable investment asset portfolio that 
is highly exposed to conditions in the 
Retail and Office market

The Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
recognises the dependency on income from the 
commercial estate and has a financial strategy 
to manage this over the next 4 years.

The reserves strategy has been reviewed and is 
under continual review through the MTFS. The 
strategy is underpinning our response to 
managing the impact of the economy as well as 
responding to risks in delivering the Councils 
business and providing some capacity to invest 
in transformational change

The Council will develop a vision and 
strategy for the Town Centre.

Given its significant asset holdings in the town 
centre, the asset management strategy will 
need to be guided by a clear vision and strategy 
for the town centre that is informed by up-to-
date market insight and intelligence. This will 
enable the council to maximise the use of its 
assets to get a balance between financial return 
and place making outcomes (repeated – see 
action above)

P
age 53



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

Management of the asset portfolio and the 
markets these operate in is part of the asset 
management strategy referred to above

A review of the governance of Victoria Square 
is underway and will report, with 
recommendations, to the Executive. 

Completion of the commissioned review on the 
governance of Victoria Square in order to 
identify the most effective approach to the 
management of the assets to secure the 
financial and place making interests of the 
Council.

Following this governance review the council 
will adopt the required changes to develop  its 
commercial and strategic finance capacity 
and expertise across its whole asset portfolio 
and investments in order to deliver on the 
required outcomes for the borough

There is a risk that the high proportionate 
level of debt payments the council incurs 
compared to Net Service Expenditure, will 
reduce the Council’s financial resilience in 
the medium to long term. These 
commitments reduce budgetary flexibility 
in the event of volatility.

The Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
recognises the high level of fixed costs in the 
general fund that is required to services the 
costs of borrowing and has a reserves strategy 
that is informed by an assessment of service 
and financial risk.

There is an asset management strategy that is 
in development which includes an asset 
disposal policy. In the short term there is no 
requirement to sell assets in order to reduce the 
costs of borrowing.

Continue to strengthen the Council’s 
Medium and Long-Term Financial Strategy 

Be a strong voice in the public sector for the role 
of Local Government in delivering on 
regeneration ambitions and recognition of this 
role in making sources of funding available to 
Councils.

The delivery of the asset management strategy 
will be escalated as a key project, reporting to 
CLT as the Corporate Programme Board, 
alongside a quarterly report on the performance 
of retail and office assets (Repeated – see 
action above)

The Risk is accepted and will be considered 
through the Council’s Risk Management Policy 
to determine risk treatment and further 
mitigations

P
age 54



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

There is a risk that the current level of 
WBC’s existing borrowing will reduce 
appetite and capacity to borrow to fund 
infrastructure in the future

The Council’s strategy is for borrowing to 
support regeneration and has been targeted to 
the areas of greatest regeneration need which 
is housing and the town centre as the economic 
hub for the borough. This investment by its 
nature is future focussed and has accounted for 
the likely significant demand for Council 
intervention.

The borrowing and investments made by the 
Council are intended to operate as a catalyst 
and lever for private sector investment into the 
borough which will further enhance the 
regeneration activity and outcomes.

The Council takes a strong partnership role to 
lever benefits for Surrey and the Borough. We 
are working in partnership with the Surrey 
District and Boroughs and County Council to 
develop a Surrey 2050 Place Ambition.

Continue to strengthen the Council’s 
Medium and Long-Term Financial Strategy 
(Repeated – see action above)

Be a strong voice in the public sector for the role 
of Local Government in delivering on 
regeneration ambitions and recognition of this 
role in making sources of funding available to 
Councils (Repeated – see action above)

Given its significant asset holdings in the town 
centre, the asset management strategy will 
need to be guided by a clear vision and strategy 
for the town centre that is informed by up-to-
date market insight and intelligence. This will 
enable the council to maximise the use of its 
assets to get a balance between financial return 
and place making outcomes (Repeated – see 
action above)

There is a risk that the regulatory landscape 
or market conditions change. This would 
provide an immediate risk to the Council, or 
impact WBC’s ability to finance or 
refinance.

The Council has a risk management policy that 
has been reviewed in 2021 as part of the Fit for 
the Future change programme. This policy is in 
place in order to actively assess and 
strategically manage risk.

The Risk is accepted and will be considered 
through the Council’s Risk Management Policy 
to determine risk treatment and further 
mitigations

There is a medium-long term risk that 
Thameswey Central Milton Keynes could 
become insolvent

The company analysis in the report uses the 
Cabinet Office playbook which is a framework 
for evaluating commercial operations 
framework.  It is important to recognise that the 
Thameswey Group was established as a wholly 
owned subsidiary of the Council to fulfil the 

The Council will undertake a review of the 
Strategic alignment between the Council 
and the Thameswey group

P
age 55



Comprehensive Statement

OSC22-006

objectives of the Council addressing need 
which would not be met by the private sector.  

The report recognises that the Companies in 
which the Council have invested in have 
differing strategic purposes and are in different 
phases of maturity, meaning the relationship 
with the Council is not just a contractual one. It 
also notes that the companies are currently 
immature and are expected to make losses in 
the short-term, with the business plans being 
long-term in nature.  

A specific review of the Thameswey Central 
Milton Keynes (TCMK) and Thameswey Energy 
Limited Business Plans will be commissioned

It is recommended the Council shares the 
analysis with Companies and requests a 
management response.

Agree with the recommendation. This will be 
incorporated into the review of the strategic 
alignment between the Council and 
Thameswey group, highlighted above, as an 
early output

P
age 56



OSC22-006

6 Corporate Strategy 

6.1 The Comprehensive Statement supports the Council’s Corporate plan priority to ensure an 
innovative, proactive and effective Council by securing the effective use of resources. 

7 Implications

Finance and Risk

7.1 The Comprehensive Statement sets out the Council’s current financial position and the 
Statements on assets and liabilities are consistent with the Council’s Statement of Accounts 
and monthly reporting.   

7.2 A number of risk areas and observations are noted in the Comprehensive Statement report 
which are addressed further in the responses in section 5 of this report.

7.3 The actions and improvements identified will have financial implications which will be 
considered further as part of the Medium-Term Financial Strategy report in March 2022.  

Equalities and Human Resources

7.4 There are no equalities or human resource implications arising from this report.

Legal

There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

8 Engagement and Consultation 

8.1 A series of community engagement activity was delivered between October and December 
2021 alongside an engagement questionnaire to get community feedback into the priorities for 
the Council and Communities. 

8.2 The feedback from this engagement is part of the integrated service and financial planning in 
order to reflect this engagement in the medium-term financial strategy and new Corporate 
Plan. It has been reported to the 20th January meeting of the Executive and a full response to 
the feedback is being reported to 24th March meeting of the Executive.

REPORT ENDS

Page 57





 

 

Briefing of Financial Review and Insight Report only, scope restrictions and disclaimers identified in Main Report. 

Comprehensive Statement – Member Briefing 
In line with the Notice of Motion structure requested by Councillors, this briefing summarises the 

independent assessment conducted on key financial matters at Woking Borough Council: 

Theme Key Statement Observations  

WBC Asset 

Position 

1. At the latest year end (31st March 2021), WBC had net 
assets of £142m comprised of £1.99bn of assets and 
£1.85bn of liabilities. 

2. At 31st March 2021, £953m of assets related to illiquid 
long term financial interests in companies.  

3. At 31st March 2021, WBC fixed assets were valued at 
£889m. 

4. WBC’s asset base increased by £2.6m between year-end 
2020 and 2021. 

5. WBC’s Investment Property portfolio is primarily 
composed of Office, Retail and Land (representing 81% of 
the Portfolio). 

6. WBC Investment Properties were revalued downward by 
£43m (12%) in FY20/21. 

7. WBC have £112.8m worth of Current Assets on the 
Balance Sheet as at the 1st April 2021; comprised of 
£98.2m (87%) of current debtors and cash and cash 
equivalents of £14.6m (13%). 

8. WBC have £142.9m in reserves on their balance sheet as 
at the 1st April 2021; comprised of £112.9m (79%) of 
useable reserves and £30.0m (21%) of unusable 
reserves.   

9. WBC have no fixed or floating charges over any of its 
assets. 

1. WBC’s application of 
Asset Accounting 
Policies and approach 
to valuation are 
reasonable. 

2. WBC have a sizeable 
investment asset 
portfolio that is highly 
exposed to conditions 
in the Retail and 
Office market. 

3. In the short-term WBC 
useable reserves are 
sufficient to manage 
financial shocks. 

WBC 

Borrowing 

Position 

1. As at October 2021 WBC borrowing totals £1.84bn; 
£65m in Short-term Borrowing, and £1.77bn Long-term 
Borrowing. 

2. 98% of WBC Debt Portfolio is held by the Public Works 
Loan Board, and therefore subject to HMT Borrowing 
Conditions. 

3. 98% or £1.80bn of the Debt Portfolio is at Fixed Rates; 
ranging from 0.06% to 4.85%. The remaining 2% relates 
to LOBO’s which are variable in nature, although the 
Council could refinance with Fixed Rate borrowing at a 
charge if required. 

4. The Average Interest Rate of Loans secured in 2021 by 
WBC was 1.62%. 

5. Debt and interest payments total £580m between 2022 
and 2030; annual repayments range from £60.7m to 
£74.3m. 

6. Debt has been secured on a long-term basis; repayment 
peaks are notable in 2057 (£101m) and 2066 (£94.1m) 

7. WBC’s external debt as a proportion of the authorised 
prudential limit was 90% as at August 2021. This delta 
facilitates further borrowing of £214.9m. 

1. WBC holds the third 
largest outstanding 
debt balance of Local 
Authorities across the 
UK. 

2. WBC long-term, fixed 
rate borrowing 
strategy, undertaken 
at low interest rates, 
reduces exposure to 
volatility in the 
finance market. 

3. Debt Repayment is 
dependent on 
Residential, Office, 
Retail and Energy 
Markets that are 
currently facing 
turbulence. 

Page 59



2 

 

Briefing of Financial Review and Insight Report only, scope restrictions and disclaimers identified in Main Report. 

 

 

Theme Key Statement Observations  

8. The Annual Interest Payable Expenses as a Proportion of 
Next Service Expenditure for WBC is 135%. 

9. WBC have no covenants on their borrowing position, in 
the event of default, PWLB loans are secured on Council 
revenues rather than specific assets or collateral. 

WBC 

Financial 

Interests 

1. WBC investments total £1.15bn as of October 2021; 
£1.09bn of long-term investments to JV’s or Group 
Companies, £37.8m in Share Capitalisations and £17.5m 
to External Organisations. 

2. Between March 2020 and October 2021, WBC made 
£363m worth of loans to its Joint Venture and Group 
companies. 

3. Thameswey Housing Ltd have a net asset position of 
£30.2m.   

4. Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum have a net asset 
position of £4.0m. 

5. Thameswey Development Ltd have a net asset position 
of £2.9m. 

6. Thameswey Energy Ltd have a negative net asset 
position of £0.3m indicating liabilities of the company 
are greater than its assets. 

7. Victoria Square Ltd have a negative net asset position of 
£11.5m indicating liabilities of the company are greater 
than its assets. 

8. ThamesWey Central Milton Keynes Ltd have a negative 
net asset value of £20.9m, indicating liabilities of the 
company are greater than its assets. 

9. WBC received £28m of interest income from Long-term 
Investments in 2020/21. 

1. WBC have shifted 
from an equity to a 
capital loan model to 
fund companies. 

2. For those companies 
where the Council has 
a material loan 
investment (1% of 
total investment 
value), there is 
sufficient turnover to 
meet short-term debt 
repayments. 

3. The solvency of 
ThamesWey Milton 
Keynes Ltd is at 
material risk. 

 

 

WBC 

Contractual 

Obligations  

1. WBC hold a total of £7.9m in outstanding Capital Grants 
as at October 2021. 

2. WBC have received a total of £29.2m from Homes 
England related to work at Triangle Site, with £1.6m 
received in the current year.  

3. WBC have received a total of £9.4m from Homes England 
related to work as part of the Sheerwater leisure centre. 

4. WBC have received a total of £3.1m in grants from BEIS 
relating to a heat decarbonisation scheme.  

5. Revenue grants received by WBC in 2020/21 were £47m 
to date.  

6. WBC have medium-term contractual obligations of 
£89.5m. 

7. WBC have long-term contractual obligations of £39.6m  

1. WBC have specific 
contractual 
obligations relating to 
grants received from 
Homes England. 

2. WBC have systems in 
place to ensure that 
grants are 
administered 
appropriately and 
reimbursements are 
correct.  

 

Page 60



FINAL DRAFT

Woking Borough Council 

January 2022

Comprehensive Statement
Final Report

P
age 61



EY LLP

1 More London Place
London SE1 2AF

ey.com

Dear Leigh Clarke, 

In accordance with the Comprehensive Statement scoping document of October 2021 and confirmation of requirements for Woking 
Borough Council (“the Authority”), we have prepared this report.

Purpose of our report and restrictions on its use 

This report has been developed based upon data and information provided by the Authority. The report was prepared on your 
instructions for the purposes of providing a Comprehensive Statement on the Council’s Assets, Borrowing, Financial Interests and
Contractual Obligations.

The report is to be used by the Council in responding to the recent Notice of Motion, this Report should not be quoted, referred to or 
shown to any other parties unless so required by court order or a regulatory authority, without our prior consent in writing.

The Report may not have considered issues relevant to any third parties. Any such use that third parties may choose to make of the 
Report is entirely at their own risk and we assume no responsibility whatsoever in relation to this. The Report should not be provided 
to any third parties without our prior approval and without them recognising in writing that we assume no responsibility or liability 
whatsoever to them in respect of the contents of our deliverables. 

The information has been considered correct at the time of the Report. We have not sought to verify the accuracy of the 
Management information or the explanations provided by these individuals. Activities may have taken place since the date of the 
conversations with Management which are not reflected in the Report. 

Our work has been limited in scope and time and we stress that a more detailed review may reveal issues that this review has not. If 
you would like to clarify any aspect of this Report or discuss other related matters, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Yours Faithfully,

Darra Singh

Senior Partner, Government and Infrastructure

Woking Borough Council – Comprehensive Statement

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited 
liability partnership registered in England and 
Wales with registered number OC300001 band 
is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global 
Limited. A list of members’ names is available 
for inspection at 1 More London Place, London 
SE1 2AF, the firm’s principal place of business 
and registered office. Ernst & Young LLP is a 
multi-disciplinary practice and is authorised and 
regulated by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and Wales, the 
Solicitors Regulation Authority and other 
regulators. Further details can be found at 
http://www.ey.com/UK/en/Home/Legal.

P
age 62

http://www.ey.com/UK/en/Home/Legal


Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 3

The analysis presented in this report reflects information as presented within the 
latest versions of documents that have been shared with EY. It is noted that in 
many of these documents, the position presented is specific to a moment in time 
and is therefore subject to future change. It is also noted that we have not 
challenged or reviewed the appropriateness of figures presented within the 
documents but have instead look to identify potential financial risks that exist 
within the Councils financial position.

The reflections provided in this report present a view at a given moment in time 
and it is noted that statements and financial resilience risks could change across 
an ever uncertain and fast changing environment.

EY were not restricted in their enquires with the Council. The report is based on 
information that received until 17th December 2021. 

This document should not be relied upon by any other person than Woking 
Borough Council. The information contained within these slides represents known 
information as at the date of preparation based on the sources identified, 
however it is acknowledged that this information is subject to change. 

EY disclaims all liability for all costs, loss, damage and liability arising from or 
relating to or in any way connected with the provision of these slides to any party. 
Any commercial decisions taken by you are not within the scope of our duty of 
care and in making such decisions you should take into account the limitations of 
our discussion and other factors, commercial and otherwise, of which you should 
be aware of from other sources

Scope Restrictions Disclaimer

P
age 63



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 4

1. Comprehensive Statement

P
age 64



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 5

Comprehensive Statement - Summary
Introduction

Within this section a comprehensive and independent assessment of key
financial matters for the Council is presented in line with the Notice of Motion
structure requested by Councillors . The report covers;

1. The Council’s Asset Position 

2. The Council’s Borrowing Position 

3. The Council’s Investment Position (including an assessment of the financial 
resilience of the individual companies) 

4. The Council’s Contractual Obligations

This analysis has employed the following core datapoints received from the 
Council and associated Companies;

➢ Statement of Accounts as at March 2021

➢ August 2021 Financial Reporting and Monitoring Review

➢ Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 

➢ Detailed Breakdowns of Assets, Borrowing, Investments and Grants 
provided by the Council at October 2021. 

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Investment Position Contractual ObligationsSummary

Statement of Motion (29 July 2021)

“The council calls for a full, independent, and comprehensive review of all the
assets and liabilities of Woking Borough Council; and all companies in which it
has an interest whether by means of shareholding (however large or small) or
any other means of influencing the activities of said company. The report is
to contain a Comprehensive Statement identifying, amongst other things:

An independent reviewer’s assessment of the current net realisable value of
each of the assets

1. Full details of all borrowings including their terms and conditions

2. Full details of outstanding contractual obligations involving future income 
to be received and future expenditure to be incurred

3. Details of any fixed or floating charges on any assets

4. Full details of any grants, loans or other contracts which contain 
performance conditions which, if not met, would incur financial penalties 
for the Council or any of its companies. “

P
age 65



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 6

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Asset Position

Introduction

Within this section we have assessed WBC’s asset position, employing a number of
resources, namely:

➢ The Council’s fixed asset register at 31st March 2021

➢ The revaluation report provided to the Council by WHE Chartered Surveyors 

➢ HRA stock valuation at 31st March 2021

The resources noted above were provided by Woking Borough Council, we have 
not sought to verify accuracy or validate representations made by management in 
interpretation of the data. 

The following focus areas have been reviewed;  

1. An overview of the fixed asset position 

2. The movement in the assets held over the financial year

3. The revaluation of assets (with a particular focus on the revaluation of 
investment properties) 

4. An analysis of the assets held by sector including the key risks to the Council 
of holding assets within an individual sector

5. An assessment of the land and buildings held by the Council 

6. A statement of the charges held against assets 

A summary of our key statements in the section is provided below, this outlines 
the significant observations and risks we noted during our assessment.

Key Statements (Continued):

➢ WBC’s asset base increased by £2.6m between year-end 2020 and 

2021.

➢ WBC’s Investment Property portfolio is primarily composed of Office, 

Retail and Land (representing 81% of the Portfolio).

➢ WBC Investment Properties were revalued downward by £43m (12%) 

in FY20/21.

➢ WBC have £112.8m worth of Current Assets on the Balance Sheet as 

at the 1st April 2021; comprised of £98.2m (87%) of current debtors 

and cash and cash equivalents of £14.6m (13%).

➢ WBC have £142.9m in reserves on their balance sheet as at the 1st 

April 2021; comprised of £112.9m (79%) of useable reserves and 

£30.0m (21%) of unusable reserves. 

➢ WBC have no fixed or floating charges over any of its assets.

Observations:

➢ Woking Borough Council’s application of Asset Accounting Policies 
are reasonable.

➢ WBC have a sizeable investment asset portfolio that is highly exposed 
to conditions in the Retail and Office market.

➢ In the short-term WBC useable reserves are sufficient to manage 
financial shocks.

Risks:

➢ There is a risk that Commercial Properties continue to be devalued, 
as a result of reductions in commercial rent income, this would dilute 
the Council’s Balance Sheet. Where this does occur, the Council need 
to consider whether continued revaluations indicate a need to 
reassess asset use to meet regeneration objectives.

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

Key Statements: 

➢ At the latest year end (31st March 2021), WBC had net assets of 

£142m made up of £1.99bn of assets and £1.85bn of liabilities.

➢ At 31st March 2021, £953m of assets related to illiquid long term 

financial interests in companies. 

➢ At 31st March 2021, WBC fixed assets were valued at £889m.

P
age 66



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 7

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Asset Position

Asset Position – Overview 

➢ At 31st March 2021 the Council had net assets of £143.0m made up of 
£1.99bn in assets and £1.85bn in liabilities. 

➢ £953m of the assets related to long-term financial interests in companies and  
a further £37.8m in shareholdings, held to help meet Council priorities. 
Further analysis has been performed on this balance in section three of the 
statement. 

➢ The remaining £1.04bn of assets largely relate to a combination of fixed 
assets, short term debtors and cash.

Fixed Asset Position – Overview

➢ The total net book value of Council fixed assets was £889m across 3,886 
separate asset lines, of which 3,341 relate to housing stock. 

➢ The largest category of assets by value are the Council’s investment 
properties, which have a net book value of £330m as at the end of the 
2020/21 financial year, representing 37% of the Council’s asset base.

➢ Other significant elements of the Council’s asset base are Housing Dwellings 
that have a net book value of £202m (23%), Land and Buildings that have a net 
book value of £167m (19%) and Housing Land that has a net book value of 
£100m (11%).

Fixed Asset Position – Movement in value

➢ This net movement incorporates several variables; £66m worth of additions 
occurring in-year, predominately Assets Under Construction and Investment 
Properties. Revaluation gains were recorded against Housing Dwelling and 
Land and Land and Buildings totalling £12.1m. 

➢ These amounts were offset by £29m of depreciation, £3.5m worth of disposals 
and a £43m revaluation of the Council’s investment properties.

➢ The breakdown of movements varied by asset type, with additions 
concentrated within the classifications Assets under Construction and 
Investment Properties. This was offset by a downward revaluation in the value 
of Investment Properties.

➢ We have summarised the position against each asset type below, as well as 
summarising the accounting method utilised for valuation by Woking Borough 
Council. 

Figure 2 – Fixed Asset Breakdown – Movement in Position 2020-21- £’000

329,716 

201,779 

167,605 

100,279 

67,231 

15,106 6,996 918 
 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

 350,000

Investment
Properties

Housing
Dwelling

Land &
Buildings

Housing Land Assets Under
Construction

Community Plant /
Vehicles /
Equipment

Heritage

A
ss

e
t 

V
a

lu
e

Figure 1 – Fixed Asset Breakdown – By Asset Type - £’000

Asset Position: Woking Borough Council have fixed assets worth 
£889m on their balance sheet as at the 1st April 2021. 

887,019
918,827

889,629

66,241

12,121

43,026

3,529 29,198

 500,000

 550,000

 600,000

 650,000

 700,000

 750,000

 800,000

 850,000

 900,000

 950,000

 1,000,000

Opening
Position NBV

Additions Revaluation in
RR

Revaluation in
CIES

Disposals Other
Movements

Cost or
Valuation

Depreciation Closing
Position NBV

A
ss

e
t 

V
a

lu
e

Movement in assets: The Council’s asset base grew by £2.6m 
between 2020 and 2021

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 67



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 8

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Asset Position

Investment Properties 

➢ Value: The net book value of investment properties at the year end was 
£330m across 65 separate asset lines. £186m of this total relates to Strategic 
Investment Properties, held by the Council as part of the regeneration agenda. 

➢ Movement: The value has decreased by £32m (8.8%) in the year, largely due 
to £25m of additions offset by a reduction in the value of £43.6m. There was 
also a significant reclassification of investment properties into assets under 
construction. These related to the Triangle Site which has been demolished as 
part of the Council’s programme to deliver highways improvements.

➢ Accounting Policy: Investment Properties and Assets Held For Sale are 
revalued annually by RICS qualified valuers. The assets are valued at Fair 
Value. This is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. 

Housing Dwellings

➢ Value: Woking Borough Council have Housing Dwelling assets with a net book 
value of £202m. 

➢ Movement: The asset classification has increased by £11m (5.8%) in the year. 
This position was largely comprised of £10.9m worth of additions and 
revaluations of £6.2m, offset by disposals of £2.3m and annual costs of 
depreciation of £3.7m 

➢ Accounting Policy: Valuations for Council Dwelling related assets have been 
carried out by the Council's Estate Management Section. Properties regarded 
by the authority as operational have been valued on a Current Value Basis. The 
latest valuations have been completed at 31 March 2021. 

Housing Land

➢ Value: Woking Borough Council have Housing land assets with a net book value 
of £100m.

➢ Movement: The investment property asset classification has increased by 
£5.5m (5.9%) between 1st April 2020 and 1st April 2021. This position was a 
result of revaluation increases of £5.5m on Housing Land. 

➢ Accounting Policy: Land is included in the balance sheet at existing use value 

where there is an active market for the asset. Where there is no active market, 
or the valuation is for a specialised asset, Depreciated Replacement Cost is 
used.

Land and Building

➢ Value: The Council has 136 separate asset lines within the Land and Building 
classification, which had a net book value of £167m at 1st April 2021.

➢ Movement: The land and building asset classification has decreased by £771k 
(0.5%) 1st April 2020 and 1st April 2021. This position was largely comprised 
of £8.1m worth of additions, offset by depreciation of £5.3m and a movement 
of assets to assets under construction of £2.9m. 

➢ Accounting Policy: Buildings are included in the balance sheet at existing use 
value where there is an active market for the asset. Revaluations of material 
fixed assets are carried out annually with all other fixed assets on a rolling five 
year programme by RICS qualified valuers. 

Assets Under Construction

➢ Value: Woking Borough Council has 26 separate asset lines within the Assets 
Under Construction classification, which had a net book value of £67m at the 
year end. 

➢ Movement: The Assets Under Construction classification has increased by 
£35m (110.3%) between 1st April 2020 and 1st April 2021. There were £19m 
worth of additions to this classification, of which £15.7m relates to movements 
from Investment Properties and Land and Buildings.

➢ Accounting Policy: Non-operational assets are included in the balance sheet at 
cost. 

Plant, Vehicles and Equipment 

➢ Value: Woking Borough Council had 292 separate asset lines within the Plant, 
Vehicles and Equipment classification, which had a net book value of £6.9m at 
1st April 2021.

➢ Movement: Against the Plant, Vehicles and Equipment classification, there 
were additions of £2.1m (22.9%) in year, which related to 17 asset lines

• Accounting Policy: PPE is included in the balance sheet at existing use value 
where there is an active market for the asset. 

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 68



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 9

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Asset Position

Fixed Asset Position – Movement in value (continued)

Community Assets

• Value: Woking Borough Council had 24 separate asset lines within the 
Community Assets classification, which had a net book value of £15.1m at 1st 
April 2021.

• Movement: The Community Assets classification had no movement year on 
year. 

• Accounting Policy: Community assets are included in the balance sheet at 
historical cost. 

Heritage Assets 

• Value: Woking Borough Council had 27 separate asset lines within the 
Community Assets classification, which had a net book value of £918k at 1st 
April 2021.

• Movement: The Heritage assets classification had no movement year on year. 

• Accounting Policy: Heritage assets are included in the balance sheet at their 
insurance valuation where available. Where no such valuation is available, then 
historic cost is used in the first instance, otherwise an estimate of the asset's 
value is made. 

Asset Revaluations 

➢ The movement of the fixed asset base included a total downward revaluation of 
£30m against WBC assets. 

➢ This was largely made up of a £43m downwards revaluation of the investment 
property assets, which was partially offset by an increase in the value of 
Council housing and dwelling of £12m.

➢ Accounting Policy: Material Assets held for use are revalued annually with all 
other fixed assets revalued every five years on a rolling basis, with assets held 
for investment purposes revalued annually in line with the Council’s accounting 
policy and the CIPFA guidance. The revaluation takes place by an independent 
organisation (WHE Chartered Surveyors). Property regarded as operational 
has been valued on a Current Value Basis and investment properties and 
assets held for sale are valued at Fair Value. 

➢ Given the downward movement for asset valuations only relates to Investment 
Property, the focus of our analysis is on the Investment Property portfolio, 
identifying the key drivers in this downward revaluation by property and 
related sector. 

Investment Property Revaluation

➢ Across the assets revalued, the net position was a £43.6m revaluation 
downwards, which reflected a drop of 12% in the assets value. 

Movement to Assets Under Construction: £15.7m of assets were 
reclassified from Land and Buildings and Investment Properties to 
Assets Under Construction of which most of these related to the 
Housing Infrastructure Fund. This is reflective of Woking’s 
investment approach within the borough, with assets redeveloped 
to help the Council meet its regeneration ambitions. 

Revaluation losses: The Council had a downward revaluation of 
£43m on its Investment Properties, this position was driven both by 
the Councils plans to demolish of assets within this classification and 
as a result of rental incomes losses related to these assets.

Revaluation losses: Revaluations occurred against 48 of the 
Council’s investment properties, ranging between £2m positive 
revaluations to a £15.8m drop.

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 69



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 10

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Asset Position

Investment Property Revaluation (Continued)

➢ As demonstrated in figure 3, the largest downward revaluations occurred for 
Redevelopment Site (51.4%), Office/Retail (25.8%), Shopping Centres (24.2%) 
and Retail (15.9%) properties. 

➢ The large revaluation reflected within redevelopment site, reflects the intent to 
demolish Triangle Site Properties, rather than broader market trends. 

➢ Across the identified sub-classifications there are emergent sector trends that 
are likely to further influence the value of the Council’s asset base over the 
medium-term. These are explored in greater detail in the next section.

➢ On an individual asset level, the largest percentage decreases in asset value 
were for 1 Connaught Road (£328k and 58.2%), Triangle Site Properties 
(£8.4m and 51.4%), 63 to 75 Commercial Way (£1.4m and 34.1%), 74 Victoria 
Road (£59k and 27.5%), Albion House (£7.5m and 25.8%) and Wolsey Place 
(£15.8m and 18.0%).

➢ Detail from revaluation report conducted by Wilks, Head & Eve has been 
utilised to identify whether specific risks exist for any of the material asset 
movements and to identify whether these movements represent a material 
concern to the Council's financial resilience. 

Wolsey Place

➢ Wolsey Place relates to one of the two shopping centres within Woking. 

➢ The investment property was revalued downward by £15m (18%) in year, with 
the asset reducing from £87m to £72m.

➢ This revaluation makes up the majority (36%) of the total revaluation in the 
year against investment properties.

➢ The valuers rationale on the downward revaluation states the retail climate had 
significantly softened as a result of the pandemic. This reflects the broader 
trend of 2020, with retail sales decreasing by 1.9% when compared with 2019, 
the largest fall in year on record.1 for example particularly large decreases for 
clothing stores were experienced (25.1% drop); often found within shopping 
centres. 

➢ Analysis of the investment properties asset register suggests Woking Borough 
Council have spent a total of £91.1m on this asset, however its current 
valuation is only £72.3m, reflecting a 22.3% loss in value. The current value of 
the asset is therefore significantly below the acquisition value of the asset. 

Figure 3 – Investment Properties – Revaluation Percentage 

1. https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/retailindustry/bulletins/retailsales/december2020

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

10.1% 9.0%

1.3%
0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

-0.1% -0.5% -0.8%

-6.5% -7.0% -7.2%

-15.9%

-24.2%
-25.8%

-51.4%

-60.0%

-50.0%

-40.0%

-30.0%

-20.0%

-10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

P
age 70

https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/retailindustry/bulletins/retailsales/december2020


Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 11

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Asset Position

Investment Property Revaluation (continued)

Triangle Site

➢ The Triangle Site relates to former residential and office space that has been 
purchased to redevelop as part of Housing Infrastructure Fund, which is grant 
funded. 

➢ The site was revalued downwards by £8.4m (51.4%), with the asset reducing 
from £16.2m to £7.7m.

➢ The valuers rationale for revaluation was the majority of the site being 
demolished in the year.

➢ Our analysis of the investment properties asset register suggests Woking 
Borough Council have spent a total of £16.2m on this asset, with the current 
value of £7.9m significantly below this value. It is noted however this asset has 
been moved to Assets Under Construction to reflect current use of the asset.

Albion House

➢ Albion House is a large office with retail on the ground floor. 

➢ The site was revalued downwards by £7.5m (25.8%), with the asset reducing 
from £28.9m to £21.4m.

➢ The revaluation of the property relates to the rent concessions of 50% over the 
first two quarters of 2021 due to the impacts of Covid-19. 

➢ Income related to this asset reduced from £1.3m in 2019/20 to £865k in 
2020/21, reflecting the impact of these concessions Council income. 

➢ Analysis of the investment properties asset register suggests Woking Borough 
Council have spent a total of £29.9m on this asset, with the current value of 

£21.4m significantly below this value.

Peacocks Centre 

➢ The Council have a financial interest in the Peacocks Centre, which is a major 
shopping centre in Woking. 

➢ The value of this interest was revalued downwards by £4.4m in the year, 
however there was also £4.1m of enhancements. 

➢ This downwards revaluation is again due to reduced rents in the year following 
the effects of Covid-19. From the commercial rent position, it is noted that 
income for ‘Peacocks – General’ reduced from £1m during 2019/20 to £832k 
during 2020/21, this reflects an 18% reduction in income, reflecting the 
challenging market the site operates within during the financial year.

➢ Our analysis of the investment properties asset register suggests Woking 
Borough Council have spent a total of £14.8m on this asset, with the current 
value of £12.9m, reflecting the current revaluation of this asset. 

Dukes Court 

➢ Dukes Court is a multi-let office building which was revalued downwards by 
£3.9m (7.2%)  in the year, with the asset reducing from £54.9m to £51.4m.

➢ Within the revaluation report there is no further detail provided on the grounds 
for revaluation. It is therefore difficult to produce an assessment on whether 
the reduction in value is due to market conditions and the implications this may 
have for the future value of the property. 

➢ From the commercial rents position, it is noted that income related this asset 
fell from £4.6m in 2019/20 to £4.2m during 2020/21, a fall in income of 8%. 
This suggests that the downward revaluation likely relates to reduced income 
received against this asset.

➢ Our analysis of the investment properties asset register suggests Woking 
Borough Council have spent a total of £73.9m on this asset, with the current 
value of £51.4m significantly below this value. 

Wolsey Place: The downward revaluation in Wolsey Place, reflects 
both a significant portion of the assets value and a significant 
portion of the Council’s investment property asset base. This affects 
in year resilience, due to the reduced income and if repeated has 
longer-term impacts on the value of the Councils asset base.

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 71



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 12

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Asset Position

Sector Analysis

➢ To help analyse key challenges across the Council’s asset portfolio, a review 
was undertaken on the sub-classifications of assets where possible within 
Woking’s portfolio to identify key trends. 

Investment Properties

➢ To assess potential market trends against the key sub-classifications within the 
Council’s commercial property portfolio, we have reviewed key real estate 
market trends to identify potential risks. This analysis is presented below.

a. Offices

➢ CBRE forecast that rental income for office space will have declined by 5.3% in 
the UK in 2021.1 Moreover, this reduction in rents is forecast to contribute 
towards a 2.2% drop in value of office buildings1.

➢ This trend reflects changing patterns in the way people work, as the ability to 
work remotely has significantly shifted since the pandemic. Google Mobility 
Reports demonstrate that activity at workplaces, has stabilised at 30% below 
pre-pandemic levels in Woking in 20212, supporting this changing pattern.

➢ Going forward, CBRE estimates the underlying demand for UK office spaces to 
fall by 9% over the next 3 years – a significant risk to Woking given the size of 
it’s office portfolio. 

b. Retail

➢ Rents from retail activities were 8.5% lower in Q3 2021 than the same time 
period in 2019. 

➢ This trends illustrates the rapid growth and scale of online retailers which have 
made the retail sector more competitive than the pre-pandemic years. The 
convenience of online shopping and delivery places significant pressure on in-
store retailers to attract customers and generate sufficient revenues to stay in 
business. Total online retailing increased by 46.1%3 in 2020 compared to 
2019 reflecting this trend.

➢ Given that retail properties account for almost 30% of the Council’s investment 
property portfolio, lower retail rents pose a risk to this sub-classification of 
assets.

Asset Sub-Classification
Value as at 

31/03/2021
Percentage of 

Portfolio

Office 113,380,200 34.4%

Retail 96,896,968 29.4%

Land 57,489,126 17.4%

Office/Retail 21,418,100 6.5%

Shopping Centre 13,437,008 4.1%

Industrial 12,959,500 3.9%

Mixed Use 7,452,340 2.3%

Development Purchases\Residential 
leases to external organisations

3,382,998 1.0%

Surgery 1,215,716 0.4%

Nursery 834,700 0.3%

Leisure 457,400 0.1%

Library 385,400 0.1%

Car Park 191,900 0.1%

Aerial 189,200 0.1%

Care Facility 25,000 0.0%

Figure 4 – Investment Properties – Sub Classification Breakdown

Asset Portfolio: The Council’s commercial property portfolio is 
predominately made up of Office space, Retail space and Land, with 
these three sub-classifications making up 81.2% of the Council’s 
portfolio value. 

1. https://www.cbre.co.uk/research-and-reports/UK-Market-Outlook-Midyear-Review-2021
2. https://www.google.com/covid19/mobility/
3. https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/retailindustry/bulletins/retailsales/december2020

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 72

https://www.cbre.co.uk/research-and-reports/UK-Market-Outlook-Midyear-Review-2021
https://www.google.com/covid19/mobility/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/retailindustry/bulletins/retailsales/december2020


Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 13

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Asset Position

Sector Analysis (Continued)

b. Retail (continued)

➢ Nevertheless, some recovery has already been observed – the number of new 
retail leasing deals from Q1-Q3 in 2021 is 28.4% higher than over the same 
period in 20203.

c. Shopping Centres

➢ According to Local Data Company, there was a UK net store decline of 11,3191

stores during 2020, reflecting the difficult environment for retail space. The 
result of these declines will be reduced income for shopping centres.

➢ Furthermore, there has been a significant reduction in trading activity for 
shopping centres, with estimates that £350m of UK shopping centres were 
traded in 2020 compared to a ten-year average of £3bn2. This important to 
note for the Council as transactional data informs appraisers valuations.

➢ It is likely that further challenges will come for the sector once government 
related Covid support discontinues and there could be further revaluations 
downwards if further reductions in rental income occur.

➢ Given that retail properties account for almost 30% of the Council’s investment 
property portfolio, lower retail rents pose a risk to this sub-classification of 
assets.

d. Residential

➢ For investment properties it is noted residential devaluations will not be as 
detrimental to WBC’s total value of its investment properties, as it currently 
accounts for a small portion of the portfolio.  However, the sector analysis 
below should be considered with regard to WBC’s holdings in ThamesWey 
Housing Ltd and Victoria Square Woking Ltd.

➢ In Q1 of 2021 alone, total investment in residential real estate was worth 
£771m in the UK3.  

➢ This represents the rapid increase in demand for residential properties during 
the pandemic as stay-at-home and work-from-home initiatives increased 
people’s time spent at home. Subsequently, the excess demand for housing has 
resulted in a forecast of UK house prices to rise by 5.9% by the end of 2021.

➢ Furthermore, investments in build-to-rent properties is expected to reach 
£4.2bn in the country by the end of 2021. 

Land and Buildings

➢ To identify potential risks across the Council’s operational asset base, a review 
of each sub-classification of assets within the Land and Building category has 
been conducted. Car Park and Leisure Centre income streams were affected 
during the pandemic, resulting in reduced demand, this risks the future 
valuation of these assets over the medium term. 

➢ A similar challenge may exist across the Council’s office space, with the 
pandemic resulting in significant shifts to homeworking, as working patterns 
normalise, there is the potential that the Council will have reduced need for 
office space. 

➢ The sub-classification ‘PFI’ reflects the leases for homes the Council leases to 
Thames Valley Housing Association. The value reflects the net present value of 
future cash flows from these homes. 

➢ Across the Council’s operational asset base there may therefore be 
opportunities for consolidation or disposal, helping fund elements of the 
Council’s regeneration programme in the future.

➢ The Council does not currently have a published asset management strategy 
and it is therefore difficult to ascertain how the Council intends to employ the 
asset base over the medium-term. 

Asset Portfolio: The Council’s Land and Building portfolio is 
predominately made up of Car Parks, Leisure Centres, Office Space 
and assets recognised under the PFI arrangement with these four 
sub-classifications making up 80.5% of the Council’s portfolio value. 

Reduced service use: There is the potential that across the 
Council’s operational assets, changes to societal behaviour resulting 
from the pandemic will reduce demand and therefore requirements 
across key elements of the Council asset base. This will potentially 
offer the Council opportunities to consolidate its asset base helping 
generate capital receipts.

1. https://www.savills.co.uk/research_articles/229130/313386-0

2, https://ww3.rics.org/uk/en/modus/built-environment/commercial-real-estate/has-covid-19-changed-how-retail-space-is-valued-forever-.html
3. https://www.cbre.co.uk/research-and-reports/UK-Market-Outlook-Midyear-Review-2021

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 73

https://www.savills.co.uk/research_articles/229130/313386-0
https://ww3.rics.org/uk/en/modus/built-environment/commercial-real-estate/has-covid-19-changed-how-retail-space-is-valued-forever-.html
https://www.cbre.co.uk/research-and-reports/UK-Market-Outlook-Midyear-Review-2021


Charges on Assets 

At October 2021, 98% of the loans held by the Council were held with the PWLB. 
In the event of default, these loans are automatically secured on the revenues of 
the Council rather than by reference to specific assets or collateral. Therefore HM 
Treasury will not refuse an application if satisfied that it conforms to the policy 
framework governing its lending arrangements. 

It was stated by Leigh Clarke the Finance Director and Section 151 Officer that:

‘I confirm that there are no fixed or floating charges over any of the Council’s 
assets.’

The assets held by the Council are therefore wholly owned and are not used as 
security against any loans taken out by the Council.  Therefore on their sale, the 
Council would be eligible for all funds.

Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 14

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Asset Position
Figure 5 – Land and Buildings – Sub-Classification Breakdown

Asset Sub-Classification
Value as at 

31/03/2021
Percentage of 

Portfolio

Car Park 45,133,149 26.9%

Leisure Centres & Pool 39,776,200 23.7%

PFI 28,051,496 16.7%

Office 21,890,764 13.1%

Centres 10,864,408 6.5%

Pavilion 4,711,660 2.8%

Temporary Accomodation 4,063,839 2.4%

Depot 3,142,685 1.9%

Garage 3,010,465 1.8%

Miscellaneous Building* 2,537,844 1.5%

Miscellaneous Site* 1,565,388 0.9%

Land Site 828,805 0.5%

Bridge 716,320 0.4%

Burial Ground 658,693 0.4%

Public Conveniences 489,884 0.3%

Recycling Centre 80,000 0.0%

Bowls Club 58,879 0.0%

Recreation Site 24,400 0.0%

Museum 30 0.0%

*Titles as reflected within asset register

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 74



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 15

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Borrowing Position

Introduction

Within this section an assessment has been conducted on WBC borrowing
position. In order to analyse the position, the following have been reviewed :

➢ The latest Statement of Accounts – 1st April 2021 

➢ The latest Financial Performance and Monitoring Review at August 2021

➢ A detailed breakdown of the borrowing position at October 2021

The resources noted above were provided by Woking Borough Council, we have 
not sought to verify accuracy or validate representations made by management in 
interpretation of the data. 

The following areas are reviewed: 

1. An overview of the borrowing position held by Woking Borough Council 

2. The payback period of the loans held by the Council 

3. A statement on the covenants held against the borrowing

4. An analysis of the interest rates associated with the borrowing and any 
potential future risks 

A summary of our key statements in the section below, this outlines the 
significant observations and risks we noted during our assessment.

Key Statements (continued)

➢ Debt has been secured on a long-term basis; repayment peaks are 

notable in 2057 (£101m) and 2066 (£94.1m)

➢ WBC’s external debt as a proportion of the authorised prudential limit 

was 90% as at August 2021. This delta facilitates further borrowing of 

£214.9m.

➢ The Annual Interest Payable Expenses as a Proportion of net Service 

Expenditure for WBC is 135%.

➢ WBC have no covenants on their borrowing position, in the event of 
default, PWLB loans are secured on Council revenues rather than 
specific assets or collateral.

Observations:

➢ WBC holds the third largest outstanding debt balance of Local 

Authorities across the UK.

➢ WBC long-term, fixed rate borrowing strategy, undertaken at low 

interest rates, reduces exposure to volatility in the finance market.

➢ Debt Repayment is dependent on Residential, Office, Retail and Energy 

Markets that are currently facing turbulence.

Risks:

➢ There is a risk that the high proportionate level of debt payments the 

council incurs compared to Net Service Expenditure, will reduce the 

Council’s financial resilience in the medium to long term. These 

commitments reduce budgetary flexibility in the event of volatility.

➢ There is a risk that the current level of WBC’s existing borrowing will 

reduce appetite and capacity to borrow to fund infrastructure in the 

future. 

➢ There is a risk the regulatory landscape or market conditions change.  

This would provide an immediate cost to the Council, or impact WBC’s 

ability to finance or refinance.

Key Statements: 

➢ As at October 2021 WBC borrowing totals £1.84bn; £65m in Short-term 

Borrowing, and £1.77bn Long-term Borrowing.

➢ 98% of WBC Debt Portfolio is held by the Public Works Loan Board, and 

therefore subject to HMT Borrowing Conditions.

➢ 98% or £1.80bn of the Debt Portfolio is at Fixed Rates; ranging from 

0.06% to 4.85%. The remaining 2% relates to LOBO’s which are variable 

in nature, although the Council could refinance with Fixed Rate 

borrowing at a charge if required.

➢ The Average Interest Rate of Loans secured in 2021 by WBC was 1.62%.

➢ Debt and interest payments total £580m between 2022 and 2030; 

annual repayments range from £60.7m to £74.3m.

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 75



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 16

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Borrowing Position

Borrowing Position – Overview

➢ At October 2021, Woking Borough Council had £1.84bn of borrowing split 
across both short term and long term loans. 

➢ Movement: This has increased by 32% between March 2020 and October 2021 
from £1.39bn, with a peak in August 2021 of £1.92bn. 

➢ The Council’s debt profile is primarily long term, and sourced from the Public 
Works Loan Board (PWLB); a discounted Public Sector source available to 
major local authorities to finance of capital projects. 

➢ Woking Borough Council take loans to fund long-term investments that intend 
to secure long-term improvements in the Woking community.  These projects 
link to the Council’s long-term vision for the area and focus on developing a 
sustainable future for the borough.

➢ At October 2021, 98% of the loans held by the Council were held with the 
PWLB and are all a combination of fixed maturities and annuities.

Accounting Policy

➢ Borrowing is recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the loan. They are initially measured at 
fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. 

➢ Annual charges are made to the CIES for interest payable and are based on the 
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for 
the instrument. 

➢ For most of the borrowing that the Council has, the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable plus accrued interest. 

➢ The Council is obliged to set an affordable borrowing limit each year which 
cannot be exceeded. The limits are calculated with reference to the planned 
Investment Programme. 

Borrowing Position – Payback Period

➢ Approach: To assess the future implications of this borrowing position, an 
assessment of payback period of the loans held was completed. In considering 
the annual repayments required, annuity and maturity loans were 
differentiated to consider the principal repayment dates. There are peaks in 
certain years caused by the principal amounts on maturity loans being due for 
repayment. 

➢ Demonstrated overleaf in figure 7, the current payback period of Woking’s 
loans run until at least 2077. This is due to the majority of loans with the PWLB 
being 50 year loans.

➢ The Council has utilised short-term borrowing to help reduce interest rate 
payments while rates were more favourable in advance of PWLB rates being 
reduced by 1% in November 2020. The reduction in short term borrowing from 
March 2021 to October 2021 of £142.2m reflects the Council replacing short-
term borrowing with long-term borrowing at the PWLB at reduced rates, 

Borrowing
March 2020  

£’000
March 2021

£’000

August 
2021
£’000

October 
2021 £’000

Short Term Borrowing 87,000 207,200 162,000 65,000

Long Term Borrowing 1,299,600 1,483,000 1,755,000 1,773,031

Total 1,387,000 1,483,200 1,917,000 1,838,031

Figure 6 – Borrowing Movement £’000

Borrowing Position: Woking Borough Council have borrowing worth 
£1.84bn on their balance sheet as at the 1st November 2021.  

Prudential Indicators:  At the latest financial performance and 
monitoring update in August 2021, the Council’s level of external 
debt as a proportion of the authorised prudential limit was 90%.

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 76



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 17

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Borrowing Position

Borrowing Position – Payback Period (continued)

➢ This loan profile states the Council will face large spikes in 2059 when maturity 
loans expire for 50 year PWLB Borrowing as a result of the HRA, and 2066 
where c.£100m is due as 50 year PWLB Loans drawn in 2017 mature.

➢ Given the nature of the Council’s loan profile, financial resilience risks are 
predominately concentrated in the long-term time horizon. This risk is driven 
by the ability of the Council’s investment position to help service these loans, 
with the performance of the group companies integral to Council’s ability to 
payback debt.

Borrowing Position – Covenants

➢ 98% of the loans are held with the PWLB, the covenants follow the guidance 
provided by HM treasury. 

➢ In the event of default, these loans are automatically secured on the revenues 
of the Council rather than by reference to specific assets or collateral. 
Therefore HM Treasury will not refuse an application based on the assets held 

by the Council, as long as it is satisfied that the borrowing conforms to the 
policy framework governing its lending arrangements. 

Borrowing Position - Interest Rates

➢ From the detailed breakdown of borrowing provided by the Council it is noted 
98% of the loans held are with the PWLB and all of the loans currently held by 
the Council have fixed interest rates. 

➢ Fixed interest rates on borrowing protects the Council against future rate 
movements on the current borrowing. 

➢ In November 2020, PWLB rates returned to previous values, reducing by 1%, 
restoring them as the cheaper alternative to commercial borrowing. This, 
coupled with the reduced regulations around covenants makes PWLB 
borrowing a lower risk option for the Council. 

➢ The average interest rate has gradually fallen since around 2013, reflecting 
market interest rates.

➢ Average interest rate of loans taken out in 2004: 4.77%

➢ Average interest rate of loans taken out in 2021: 1.96%

Payback Period: The loans held by the Council are long term with 
significant repayments due between 2057 and 2066.

Interest Rates: All current loans held by the Council have fixed 
interest rates and will therefore not be susceptible to future interest 
rate movements. 

156

101 94

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
5

2
0

2
7

2
0

2
9

2
0

3
1

2
0

3
3

2
0

3
5

2
0

3
7

2
0

3
9

2
0

4
1

2
0

4
3

2
0

4
5

2
0

4
7

2
0

4
9

2
0

5
1

2
0

5
3

2
0

5
5

2
0

5
7

2
0

5
9

2
0

6
1

2
0

6
3

2
0

6
5

2
0

6
7

2
0

6
9

2
0

7
1

2
0

7
3

2
0

7
5

2
0

7
7

R
e

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
£

’m

Figure 7 – Payback Period £’m

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 77



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 18

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Borrowing Position 

Borrowing Position - Interest Rates (continued)

➢ While the Council has benefitted from reduced interest rates on PWLB loans 
over the past 10 years, the market outlook is for increased interest rates in 
order to tackle rising inflation caused by the recovery from the pandemic.

➢ Changes to interest rates in the medium to long-term will be passed onto the 
Council’s group companies where there is future borrowing and could 
therefore reduce the financial viability of these companies. This could reduce 
recoverability rates of the Council’s loan position with these companies.

➢ Based on the borrowing position during 2020/21, the interest payable expense 
was £40.9m. This expense as a proportion of the net cost of services is 135%. 
These figures do not take into account the future borrowing requirements and 
any new loans taken out in the medium to long term. Furthermore, it includes a 
higher net cost of services related to expenditure rises and income losses from 
the pandemic.

➢ This figure reflects gross interest payments, however it is noted that the 
Council’s net interest position is significantly better. 

➢ The expense as a proportion of net cost of services is larger than the average 
figure for UK Councils. Taking figures from the MHCLG Local Authority 

Revenue Expenditure and Financing Data we note the UK average to be 3.4%, 

➢ Data taken from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
highlights Woking Borough Council had the third largest outstanding borrowing 
across the UK1 in 2021. 

➢ This level of debt is a risk for the Council; , it is in mind that the Council’s 
investment strategy is to fund the regeneration of the town, which requires 
significant investment and therefore equally significant borrowing. 

4.77

1.17

1.62

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

In
te

re
st

 R
a

te

Figure 8 – Average Interest Rates on Woking Borough Council Debt

Interest Payable: The current gross interest payable expense as a 
proportion of net service expenditure is 135%. This is significantly 
greater than the UK average of 3.4%.

1. Live tables on local government finance - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 78

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-local-government-finance


Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 19

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Introduction

Within this section the financial interests held by WBC have been reviewed, as
stated in the Financial Accounts, and financial interests held within companies.
This has employed the following datapoints, namely:

➢ The latest Statement of Accounts - 1st April 2021

➢ The Statement of Accounts for related companies – date ranges from 31st

December 2019 to 31st December 2020

➢ The latest Financial Performance and Monitoring Review at August 2021

The resources noted above were provided by Woking Borough Council, we have 
not sought to verify accuracy or validate representations made by management in 
interpretation of the data. 

Over the next few pages, the following subsections are described;

1. Current investment position

2. Current treasury position

3. Long-term Investments

4. Council’s group companies. 

A summary of our key statements in the section to the right, this outlines the 
significant observations and risks we noted during our assessment.

Key Statements:

➢ WBC investments total £1.15bn as of October 2021; £1.09bn of long-term 

investments to JV’s or Group Companies, £38m in Share Capitalisations and 

£18m to External Organisations.

➢ Between March 2020 and October 2021, WBC made £363m worth of loans to 

its Joint Venture and Group companies.

➢ ThamesWey Housing Ltd have a net asset position of £30.2m.  

➢ Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum have a net asset position of £3.9m.

➢ ThamesWey Development Ltd have a net asset position of £2.9m.

➢ ThamesWey Energy Ltd have a net liability position of £321k indicating 

liabilities of the company are greater than its assets.  

➢ Victoria Square Ltd have a negative net asset position of £11.5m indicating 

liabilities of the company are greater than its assets.  

➢ ThamesWey Central Milton Keynes Ltd have a negative net asset value of 

£20.9m, indicating liabilities of the company are greater than its assets.

➢ WBC received £28m of interest income from Long-term Investments in 

2020/21.

Observations:

➢ WBC have shifted from an equity to a capital loan model to fund companies. 

➢ For those companies where the Council has a material loan investment (1% of 

total investment value), there is sufficient turnover to meet short-term debt 

repayments.

➢ The solvency of ThamesWey Milton Keynes Ltd is at material risk.

Risks:

➢ There is a medium to long-term risk ThamesWey Central Milton Keynes could 

become insolvent.  If realised this would require further investment, a 

restructuring of financing or a significant write-off of capital investment 

(£34.4m) for WBC.  This would potentially impact WBC’s own capacity to 

service debt related to TCMK Ltd.

➢ There is no comment on the net liability position for Victoria Square Limited, 

as they are yet to begin trading.

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 79



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 20

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests 

Current Investment Position - Overview

➢ WBC’s investment strategy reflects the strategic priorities of the Council. One 
of the principal elements of the Council’s investment strategy are the loans 
that the Council makes for service purposes. These consist of the Council 
lending money to its subsidiary companies, joint ventures, suppliers, local 
businesses, charities, other local service providers and targeted mortgages to 
local residents.  WBC also provides low value Travel loans to employees.

➢ The investments held by the Council are all long term in nature and mainly 
relate to investments or shareholdings in companies.

➢ Movement: As demonstrated in Figure 9, the value of long-term investments 
that the Council has increased from £792m in March 2020 to £1,148m by 
October 2021.

➢ As demonstrated within this position 95% of the Council’s long-term 
investment position relates to long-term investments into its Joint Ventures 
and Group Companies. With 2% relating to long-term investments in external 
organisations and 3% related to share capitalisations. 

Current Investment Position - Interest Rate Position

➢ Movement: The total income from investments in the year to March 2021 was 
around £28m, this is a 9% increase in the year from £25m in March 2020. 

➢ The investment income is largely driven by the interest paid on the loans from 
group companies. The interest charged by the Council follows the PWLB trend 
and has therefore decreased over time. 

➢ As demonstrated in Figure 10, the average interest rate across investments, 
has moved in line with the debt position, with the average interest rate 
achieved across investments remaining above the rate paid on debt. This 
demonstrates how interest received from investments protects the debt 
position against changes in interest rates.

Investment Position: As at October 2021, the Council had £1.1bn 
worth of loans to long-term debtors.

Investments
March 2020  

£’000
March 2021

£’000
August 2021

£’000
October 

2021 £’000

Long Term Investments to JV’s/ Group 
Companies

729,966 980,046 1,069,124 1,093,049

Long Term Investments to external 
organisations

24,596 25,387 17,184 17,516

Share Capitalisations 37,808 37,808 37,808 37,808

Total 792,370 1,043,241 1,124,116 1,148,373

Figure 9 – Investment Composition £’000

Investment Income: The Council received £28m of income from 
these investments in the 2020/21 financial year.

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 I

n
te

re
st

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

Investment - Average Interest Rate Debt - Average Interest Rate

Figure 10 – Average Interest Rate – Debt Position vs Investment Position

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 80



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 21

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Current Investment Position - Interest Rate Position (Continued)

➢ The average rate of return across the investment portfolio is presented below, 
with the rate of return from investment income demonstrated below less the 
associated costs, including the cost of borrowing where appropriate, as a 
proportion of the sum initially invested.

Current Treasury Management Position

➢ The Council’s treasury management approach is stated within the Treasury 
Management Strategy, which outlines how the Council makes investments of 
surplus cash and borrowing to manage delays in cash flows. 

➢ Woking Borough Council’s Treasury Management Strategy is to prioritise 
security and liquidity over yield for treasury management investments. 

➢ Cash is invested securely with the Council’s own bank, in diversified money 
market funds, or with other local authorities. The primary focus is on 
minimising risk rather than maximising returns.

➢ Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are made daily 
and are delegated to the Finance Director and finance team who follow the 
Treasury Management Strategy approved by the Executive. Treasury 
Management practices are in place which provide day to day guidance for 
treasury officers.

➢ As at the 26th November 2021, the Council had £22m invested within Money 
Market Funds and £4.15m in the Council’s banking facility with Lloyds.

➢ As demonstrated In Figure 12, the Council are significantly below any credit 
limits with any of the Money Market Fund facilities , thus ensuring that they are 
not overexposed to risk and ensuring appropriate diversification of short-term 
investments.

➢ It is important that the Council maintains short-term balances to meet its cash 
flow requirements, as displayed in Figure 13, the Council currently has 
sufficient balances in short-term money market funds to meet its cash flow 
requirements between  the 23rd November and the 31st December. Based on 
the cash flow requirements provided to us by the Council, the Councils banking 
position will move from £7m as at the 23rd November 2021 to -£15.5m at the 
31st December 2021, a movement of £22.5m. To meet this position the 
Council will draw on money from its money market funds.

Investment
2019/20 

Actual
2020/21 
Forecast

2021/22 
Budget

Treasury Management Investments 0.41% 0.15% 0.9%

Service Investments: Loans 0.00-2.00%

Service Investments: Shares Nil – Do not expect any return on shares

Strategic Property Investments since 2016/17 2.00% 1.60% 1.60%

Figure 11 – Investment rate of return (net of all costs)

Counter Party Credit Limit
Investments 
Outstanding

Limit Available

Deutsche Asset & Wealth Management 50 2 48

Standard Life Liquidity Fund 30 0 30

LGIM Liquidity Funds 50 0 50

Federated Investors UK 70 20 50

Total 200 22 178

Figure 12 – Money Market Fund Balances – 26th November 2021 - £’m

Money Market Position: The Council had £26.15m of liquid funds as 
at the 26th November 2021, with £22m invested in Money Market 
Funds. The Council were within acceptable credit limits across all 
these funds. 

Figure 13 – Forecast Cash Flow 23.11.2021 to 31.12.2021 - £’000

-25,000

-20,000

-15,000

-10,000

-5,000

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000
C

a
sh

 £
'0

0
0

Forecast Bank Balance Current MMF Funds

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 81



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 22

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Current Treasury Management Position (Continued)

➢ The Council will also conduct both short and long-term borrowing to meet its 
cash flow requirements as necessary.

Long-Term Investments

➢ The Council’s investment position largely reflects the loans that the Council 
provides to its subsidiaries as a method of helping the Council achieve its 
strategic objectives, while benefitting from the expertise or capacity of the 
organisation it finances.

➢ When providing loan finance the primary risk is the borrower will be unable to 
repay. The Council’s loans to subsidiaries are secured against the subsidiaries 
assets, which while complex and subject to market conditions, mean the 
Council would take ownership of assets in the event of default. 

➢ The EY assessment of Companies adopts a viability methodology 
recommended by the Cabinet Office.

➢ Focus has been placed on the larger Council investments, as default would 
have significant impact on the Council’s financial resilience. 

➢ The Council’s investment position is demonstrated in Figure 14, which shows 
the total investment position as at the latest Statement of Accounts date 
(March 2021) and the current assessment date (October 2021). The total 
value of investments held at October 2021 is £1.1bn. 

Cash Position: The Council have sufficient short-term balances to 
meet their forecast cash flow obligations. With the sum of balances 
in Money Market funds and the bank, being greater than cash flow 
requirements over the next month.

Financial Interests: The Council have £1.1bn of investments as at 
October 2021. £1bn of this position reflects, long-term investments 
in group companies or joint ventures, £17m are loans to external 

organisations and £37m are share capitalisations.

Counter Party
March 2021

£’000
October 2021

£’000

Long Term Investments in Group Companies/ Joint 
Ventures

ThamesWey Energy Limited (TEL) 13,117 15,815

ThamesWey Housing Limited (THL) 244,116 260,779

ThamesWey Housing Limited (Sheerwater) 69,408 83,342

ThamesWey Developments Limited (THL) 47,250 47,250

ThamesWey Developments Limited (Sheerwater) 5,000 5,000

ThamesWey Developments Limited (Sheerwater Leisure 
Centre) 

9,800 10,800

ThamesWey Developments Limited (for TEL) 28,225 28,005

ThamesWey Central Milton Keynes Ltd 33,391 34,425

ThamesWey Solar Ltd 993 906

Rutland (Woking) Ltd 1,665 1,665

Victoria Square Ltd 527,082 605,061

Long Term Loans to External Organisations

Peacocks Centre 6,350 6,350

Woking Hospice 9,256 -

A&B Menswear 101 101

Woking Football Club 75 75

Freedom Leisure 1,705 1673

Greenfield School 6,400 6,400

Wolsey Place - 1,417

Kingfield Community Sports Centre Ltd 1,500 1,500

Share Capitalisations

ThamesWey Limited 31,193 31,193

Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum Limited 6,000 6,000

Woking Town Centre Management 1 1

Victoria Square Woking Ltd 14 14

Municipal Bonds Agency 50 50

SurreySave Credit Union 50 50

Kingfield Community Sports Centre Ltd 500 500

Total 1,043,242 1,148,373

Figure 14 – Council’s Investment Position – March to October 2021 - £’000

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 82



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 23

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Long-Term Investments (Continued)

➢ The largest investment held at October 2021 was £605m with Victoria Square 
Woking Ltd, this represents over 50% of the total investment held. Woking 
Borough Council hold a join venture with Moyallen Holdings Ltd in Victoria 
Square Woking Ltd. With Moyallen being the ultimate parent company. The 
Council also hold £14k of shares in Victoria Square Woking Ltd. The 
investment relates to the construction of the town centre development.

➢ A further £486m is held within ThamesWey Group Companies. These are 
wholly owned by the Council. The Council also hold £31.2m of shares in 
ThamesWey Limited. 

➢ Shares have been used to provide subsidy into ThamesWey Housing Ltd. As the 
shares do not have interest payable on them, the company is able to provide 
rents at sub market rates.

➢ The shares in Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum Ltd relate to the acquisition 
of the Cemetery. Whilst the cemetery business generates some income it would 
not be sufficient to meet financing costs associated with the purchase. 

➢ The Council do not hold shares as an investment to achieve dividend income or 
for future sales and instead view the shares as capital expenditure rather than 
investments for financial income. The investments in shares are not considered 
liquid in nature, and the Council assesses the risk of loss before entering into 
and whilst holding shares depending on the long-term objective of the funding 
provided.

➢ The shares held by the Council have not been revalued in the Statement of 
Accounts since their acquisition. 

Council’s Group Companies

➢ A financial assessment of material investments, those greater than £7m, has 
been performed given this each of these investments amount to more than 1% 
of the total investment balance. 

➢ This assessment has utilised the Cabinet Office Financial Viability Model, which 
provides a point in time assessment of Companies, relevant for Public Sector 
bodies considering entering into contract with third parties.  

➢ Additionally the three largest shareholdings have been reviewed.  Our analysis 
utilises a number of key ratios which present the financial health of a company 
at a point in time, and indicate potential risk.

➢ The analysis has focussed on the following metrics;

1. Short-Term Turnover Ratio (Turnover/Current Loans) - Across the 
Companies position, an assessment of turnover has been completed against 
the amount of current loans outstanding. This analysis is intended to 
demonstrate whether each company has sufficient turnover to service short-
term loans. Where this number is less than one it would reflect a financial risk 
to the company.

2. Medium Turnover Ratio (Projected Five Year Turnover/Medium Term 
Loans): Across the Companies position, an assessment of the medium-term 
turnover has been completed based on current turnover levels. This amount 
has been compared to loans outstanding in the medium term. This analysis is 
intended to demonstrate whether each company has sufficient turnover to 
service medium-term loans. Where this number is less than one it would 
reflect a financial risk to the company.

3. Operating Margin (EBIT/Turnover): The operating margin measures the 
proportion of revenues that remain after deducting operating expenses of the 
company. A higher ratio would normally suggest that the entity's business is 
more sustainable and able to withstand any change in the business and 
financial circumstances. Whereas, a lower ratio could raise doubts over the 
sustainability of the business to withstand financial shocks.

4. Net Profit/Loss: Is the difference between gross revenue and expenses of a 
business. If the difference is positive its net profit, if the difference is negative 
it’s a net loss.

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 83



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 24

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Council’s Group Companies (Continued)

5. Free Cash Flow to Debt (Net Operating Cash/Debt Minus Cash): This ratio 
demonstrates the portion of the companies debt that could be repaid in one 
year if all cash flow was used to service debt. A high ratio would normally 
indicate that other things being equal, that an entity is better able to pay back 
its debt and take on more debt if necessary. Whereas a lower ratio may raise 
doubts about a companies ability to service its existing debt. 

6. Net Debt to EBITDA Ratio (Debt Minus Cash/Gross Profit): This ratio 
demonstrates how many years it would take the company to repay net debt if 
EBITDA remained constant and was used in full to repay financial debt.  A low 
ratio would normally indicate, other things being equal, that an entity is better 
able to pay back its debt and/or may be able to take on more debt if 
necessary. A high ratio may raise doubts over the companies ability to service 
its existing debt.

7. Net Interest Paid Cover (EBIT/Interest Payable): This position demonstrates 
how many times an organisation can cover its annual interest payments out of 
available earnings. This measure provides an indication of the companies 
solvency. A higher number would indicate that the company is in a better 
position to service its debt related payments. Whereas, a lower figure may 
indicate that the company might find it more difficult to service its debt 
related payments.

8. Acid Ratio (Current Assets Minus Inventory/Current Liabilities): The acid 
ratio measures a companies ability to use its cash or other assets to meet 
short-term liabilities that are failing due. A higher ratio, would normally 
indicate that a company can more easily meet its liabilities as they fall due. A 
lower ratio may raise concerns over the ability of a company to meet its 
liabilities. 

9. Net Asset Value (Total Assets Minus Total Liabilities): The net asset value of 
the company measures all of the company’s assets minus all of its liabilities. 
The value provides an overall view of the company’s solvency, with a positive 
value suggesting the company is more solvent. A negative value may suggest 
that in the event of deterioration the company may be less solvent. A further 
assessment of each of the companies net asset positions has also been 
explored, taking into consideration a breakdown of the values by current/non-
current. 

➢ The results of our analysis on the Council’s group companies is summarised 
overleaf. The benchmarking is a point in time exercise, utilising the latest 
available statement of accounts related to December 2020.

➢ The Cabinet Office playbook advises when assessing the results of the ratio 
analysis that any Red Flag would be sufficient to exclude a participant from a 
contracting exercise or warrant further work with the counterparty to evidence 
their financial performance. Where a Company has multiple red flags, it is 
recommended the Council shares the analysis with Companies and requests a 
management response.

➢ Important context to consider when evaluating the results of the benchmarking 
include:

➢ In many cases the Council is forecasting company losses in the short-term, 
reflecting the long-term nature of the Business Plans or the Development 
being undertaken.

➢ The Companies have differing strategic purposes and are in different phases 
of maturity, meaning the relationship with the Council is not just a 
contractual one.

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 84



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 25

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Company

Short-
Term 

Turnover 
Ratio (1 

Year)

Medium-
Term 

Turnover 
Ratio (5 
Years)*

Operating 
Margin (%)

Net 
Profit/Loss

£’000

Free Cash 
Flow to Net 

Debt (%) 

Net Debt to 
EBITDA 

Ratio

Net Interest 
Paid Cover

Acid Ratio

Net Asset 
(-Liabilities) 

Value
£’000

ThamesWey Energy 
Limited (TEL) 

1.97 4.89 10% -357

Note 1

27.0 0.49 0.1 -321

ThamesWey Housing 
Limited (THL) 

248.17 1.03 52% -6,174 55.8 0.40 0.3 30,194 

ThamesWey 
Developments Limited 
(TDL) 

2.50 19.52 3% 2,350 44.0 4.56 1.9 2,940 

ThamesWey Central 
Milton Keynes Ltd

2.25 2.42 2% -1,830 28.9 0.02 0.6 - 20,931

ThamesWey Consolidated 
Position

1.42     Note 3 12% -6,155 40.5 0.54                       0.9 12,340 

Victoria Square Ltd Note 2 -19 Note 2 -0.9 1.2 -11,491

Woking Necropolis and 
Mausoleum

4.68 Note 3 31% -278 10% 1.96 6,473 1.3 3,958

Figure 15 – Company Financial Viability Assessment – Results (£’000)

Key

Turnover Ratio Less than 1 Between 1 and 2 Greater than 2

Operating Margin Less than 10% N/A Greater than 10%

Free Cash Flow to Net Debt Less than 5% Between 5% and 15% Greater than 15%

Net Debt to EBITDA Ratio Greater than 3.5 Between 2.5 and 3.5 Greater than 2.5

Net Interest Paid Cover Less than 3 Between 3 and 4.5 Greater than 4.5

Acid Ratio Less than 0.8 Between 0.8 and 1 Greater than 1

Net Asset Value Greater than 0 N/A Greater than 0

Net Profit/Loss Less than 0 N/A Greater than 0

Note 1: The net operating cashflow for these
companies is negative so the ratio cannot be
performed.

Note 2: The company generated no revenue in the year
so the ratio analysis cannot be performed.

Note 3: The companies financial statements did not
provide a medium term breakdown of loans outstanding
so the ratio analysis cannot be performed.

* Estimated figure using current year revenue

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 85



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 26

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

ThamesWey Energy Limited (TEL)

ThamesWey Energy aims to provide a long term strategy of sustainable energy
infrastructure investment both within the borough of Woking and elsewhere. The
company achieves this through its generation, distribution and supply of
sustainable, low carbon and renewable energy to public, commercial and private
domestic customers in the borough.

At 31st December 2020, TEL owed £15.2m to Woking Borough Council of which
12% is due within one year, 23% is due within five years and the remaining 65% is
due after five years. The borrowing is charged at an annual interest rate of
between 2.23% and 5.5%.

a. Short-Term Turnover Ratio (1 Year): The short-term turnover ratio highlights
TEL can service their annual borrowing 1.97 times in the current year.

b. Medium-Term Turnover Ratio (5 Years): Using a multiplier of five on the
current year revenue, TEL are able to service their five year debt 4.89 times..

c. Operating Margin: Operating margin is 10%

d. Net Profit/Loss: The company is making a net loss of £357k which is largely 
caused by the large interest payments made on loans. 

e. Free Cash Flow to Net Debt : It has not been possible to calculate operating 
margin given the company has negative net operating cash flow. 

f. Net Debt to EBITDA: The ratio highlights net debt is 27 times EBITDA in the 
year.

g. Net Interest Paid Cover: The ratio of EBIT to interest payable charges is 0.49.

h. Acid Ratio: The ratio of current assets to current liabilities is 0.1.

i. Net Asset Value: Net liabilities are negative and highlights the business is 
unlikely to be sustainable in the event of any deterioration of performance. 

Observations

ThamesWey Energy Limited has a strong operating margin; however there are 
risks around it’s ability to service debt and the company has a negative net 
liability position.  The length of loan profile provided to the Company should be 
explored as the Company holds a Net Debt to EBITDA ratio of 27; in the event 
earnings were redirected to repay debt this would take 27 years at current 
earnings rates.  Additionally the Current Liabilities for the Company (due in one 
year) rose significantly for the Company between 19/20 and 20/21; presenting a 
liquidity risk.

5 Year Revenue Loans Due to 2026 5 Year Turnover Ratio

17,592,555 3,596,518 4.89

Operating Profit Revenue Operating Margin

340,239 3,518,511 10%

Net Debt EBITDA Ratio

43,987,800 1,627,600 27.0

Operating Profit Net Interest Paid Net Interest Paid Cover

340,239 698,312 0.49

Current Assets (minus 
inventory)

Current Liabilities Ratio

4,140,476 36,780,304 0.1
2020 Revenue Loans Due in 2021 Turnover Ratio

3,518,511 1,782,576 1.97

Total Assets Total Liabilities Net Liabilities

47,710,356 48,030,929 -320,573

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 86



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 27

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Company Breakdown

ThamesWey Housing Limited (THL)

ThamesWey Housing was established to support the Council Housing and
Economic Development Strategies through the provision of additional residential
accommodation of all types. It has an objective to provide affordable homes to
those who, due to their circumstances, are unable to access open market
provision but are also unlikely to be able to access social rented accommodation.

At 31st December 2020, THL owed £304m to Woking Borough Council of which
0.01% is due within one year, 13% is due within five years and the remaining 87%
is due after five years.

The borrowing is charged at an annual interest rate of between 1.8% and 7%.

a. Short-Term Turnover Ratio (1 Year): The short-term turnover ratio highlights
THL can service their annual borrowing 248 times in the current year.

b. Medium-Term Turnover Ratio (5 Years): Using a multiplier of five on the
current year revenue, TEL are able to service their five year debt 1.03 times.

*As a development company, the company has volatile in-year revenues meaning
the five year revenue forecast should be treated as highly indicative.

c. Operating Margin: Operating margin is 52% for THL.

d. Net Profit/Loss : The company is making a net loss of £6,174k which is largely 
caused by the large interest payments made on loans. 

e. Free Cash Flow to Net Debt: It has not been possible to calculate operating 
margin given the company has negative net operating cash flow. 

f. Net Debt to EBITDA : The ratio highlights net debt is 55.8 times EBITDA in the 
year.

g. Net Interest Paid Cover: The ratio of EBIT to interest payable charges is 0.40.

h. Acid Ratio: The ratio of current assets to current liabilities is 0.3 due to the 
value of loans due within one year.

i. Net Asset Value: assets are positive and highlights the business is likely to be 
sustainable in the event of any deterioration of performance. 

Observations

ThamesWey Housing Limited holds a positive Net Asset position despite making a 
net loss in 2020 which reflects the expectations of losses within the Business 
Plan.  The Company Short-term turnover ratio benefits from a low forecast Loan 
Repayment in 2021, however over the Medium Term revenues are under pressure 
from Debt repayment. The Acid Ratio could present a risk and cashflow forecast 
should be evaluated, although it is noted there is £87m of WIP as at the Balance 
Sheet date that could offer mitigation providing developments are completed in 
2021.

5 Year Revenue* Loans Due to 2026 5 Year Turnover Ratio

40,825,515 39,710,269 1.03

Operating Profit Revenue Operating Margin

4,212,334 8,165,103 52%

Net Debt EBITDA Ratio

338,787,332 6,074,098 55.8

Operating Profit Net Interest Paid Net Interest Paid Cover

4,212,334 10,498,040 0.40

Current Assets (minus 
inventory)

Current Liabilities Ratio

10,405,455 35,073,699 0.3
2020 Revenue Loans Due in 2021 Turnover Ratio

8,165,103 32,901 248.17

Total Assets Total Liabilities Net Assets

380,144,703 349,950,582 30,194,121

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 87



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 28

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Company Breakdown

ThamesWey Developments Limited (TDL)

ThamesWey Developments function as a property developer. They develop both
commercial and residential schemes which further the Council’s ambitions. Our
first major scheme was the Hoe Valley Scheme.

At 31st December 2020, TDL owed £94m to Woking Borough Council of which
37% is due within one year, 24% is due within five years and the remaining 39% is
due after five years.

The borrowing is charged at an annual interest rate of between 2% and 4%.

a. Short-Term Turnover Ratio (1 Year) : The short-term turnover ratio highlights
TDL can service their annual borrowing 2.5 times in the current year.

b. Medium-Term Turnover Ratio (5 Years): Using a multiplier of five on the
current year revenue, TDL are able to service their five year debt 19.52 times.

c. Operating Margin: Operating margin is 3% for TDL.

d. Net Profit/Loss : The company is making a net profit of £2,350k caused by 
stable revenue in the year. 

e. Free Cash Flow to Net Debt: It has not been possible to calculate operating 
margin given the company has negative net operating cash flow. 

f. Net Debt to EBITDA: The ratio highlights net debt is 44.0 times EBITDA in the 
year.

g. Net Interest Paid Cover: The ratio of EBIT to interest payable charges is 4.56.

h. Acid Ratio: The ratio of current assets to current liabilities is 1.9.

i. Net Asset Value: Net assets are positive and highlights the business is likely to 
be sustainable in the event of any deterioration of performance. 

Observations

ThamesWey Developments demonstrates a positive net assets position and 
turnover ratios providing confidence in solvency.  The operating margins of the 
Company are thin; however given sales typically take place within the group, 
namely to ThamesWey Housing Limited this operating margin is intended and 
presents a lower risk to the Council.

5 Year Revenue Loans Due to 2026 5 Year Turnover Ratio

438,679,430 22,473,199 19.52

Operating Profit Revenue Operating Margin

2,705,369 87,735,886 3%

Net Debt EBITDA Ratio

100,436,107 2,280,167 44.0

Operating Profit Net Interest Paid Net Interest Paid Cover

2,705,369 357,964 4.56

Current Assets  (minus 
inventory)

Current Liabilities Ratio

80,915,629 43,287,764 1.9
2020 Revenue Loans Due in 2021 Turnover Ratio

87,735,886 35,093,503 2.5

Total Assets Total Liabilities Net Assets

107,450,589 104,510,363 2,940,230

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 88



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 29

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Company Breakdown

ThamesWey Central Milton Keynes Ltd (TCMK)

ThamesWey Central Milton Keynes (TCMK) was set up as a subsidiary of
ThamesWey Energy Ltd and owns and operates an Energy Station in Central
Milton Keynes. TCMK was established to build and operate a Combined Heat and
Power station to deliver district heating and a private wire network in the central
business district in Milton Keynes.

At 31st December 2020, TCMK owed £33m to Woking Borough Council of which
4% is due within one year, 17% is due within five years and the remaining 79% is
due after five years.

The borrowing is charged at an annual interest rate of between 4% and 7%.

a. Short-Term Turnover Ratio (1 Year) : The short-term turnover ratio highlights
TCMK can service their annual borrowing 2.25 times in the current year.

b. Medium-Term Turnover Ratio (5 Years): Using a multiplier of five on the
current year revenue, TCMK’s are able to service their five year debt 2.42 times.

c. Operating Margin: Operating margin is 3% for TCMK.

d. Net Profit/Loss : The company is making a net loss of £1,830k which is largely 
caused by the large interest payments made on loans. 

e. Free Cash Flow to Net Debt: It has not been possible to calculate operating 

margin given the company has negative net operating cash flow. 

f. Net Debt to EBITDA : The ratio highlights net debt is 28.9 times EBITDA in the 
year.

g. Net Interest Paid Cover: The ratio of EBIT to interest payable charges is 0.02 
highlighting very high interest costs, as well as low operating profit in the year.  

h. Acid Ratio: The ratio of current assets to current liabilities is 0.6 highlighting 
the business has a relatively low value of short term assets in comparison to the 
debts. 

i. Net Asset Value : Net assets are negative due to the large loans held.

Observations

The Ratios evidence the Going Concern risk raised by the Auditors on TCMK; it is 
in a negative net asset position, has thin operating margins and made a significant 
loss in it’s accounts of £1.8m in 2020.  The Company currently exhibits below 
threshold performance on Liquidity through the Acid Ratio, and Net Debt to 
EBITDA.  

5 Year Revenue Loans Due to 2026 5 Year Turnover Ratio

13,693,765 5,653,180 2.42

Operating Profit Revenue Operating Margin

43,901 2,738,753 2%

Net Debt EBITDA Ratio

33,527,338 1,160,196 28.9

Operating Profit Net Interest Paid Net Interest Paid Cover

43,901 1,874,003 0.02

Current Assets  (minus 
inventory)

Current Liabilities Ratio

1,134,134 1,976,583 0.6

2020 Revenue Loans Due in 2021 Turnover Ratio

2,738,753 1,216,097 2.25

Total Assets Total Liabilities Net Liabilities

18,213,910 39,145,222 - 20,931,312

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 89



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 30

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests 

Company Breakdown

ThamesWey Consolidated Position

ThamesWey Ltd was incorporated to make long-term energy and environmental
project investments in support of what subsequently became the Council’s Climate
Change Strategy. In 2004 the company’s remit was extended to include provision
of affordable homes in support of the Council’s Housing Strategy. In 2008 the
company’s remit was further extended to take forward redevelopment proposals
for parts of the Borough.

At 31st December 2020, the Group owed £456m to Woking Borough Council of
which 9% is due within one year and the remaining 91% is due after five years.

The borrowing is charged at an annual interest rate of between 3% and 7%.

a. Short-Term Turnover Ratio (1 Year): The short-term turnover ratio highlights
is 1.42 in the current year.

b. Medium-Term Turnover Ratio (5 Years): No split provided

c. Operating Margin: Operating margin is 12% for ThamesWey.

d. Net Profit/Loss: The company is making a net loss of £6,155k which is largely 
caused by the large interest payments made on loans. 

e. Free Cash Flow to Net Debt:  It has not been possible to calculate operating 
margin given the company has negative net operating cash flow.

f. Net Debt to EBITDA: The ratio highlights net debt is 40.5 times EBITDA in the 
year. 

g. Net Interest Paid Cover: The ratio of EBIT to interest payable charges is 0.54.

h. Acid Ratio: The ratio of current assets to current liabilities is 0.9 highlighting 
the business has slightly more liquid assets in comparison to debts.

i. Net Asset Value: Net assets are positive. 

Observations

The Group position demonstrates a positive net asset value, and strong operating 
margin providing confidence on solvency at the Group level despite the loss made 
in 2020 of £6.1m.  The Group holds significant debt, and the profile of the loans 
provided by the Council should be considered in light of a Net Debt Ratio of 41.  
Finally, the Acid Ratio at Group level is flagged Amber; this aggregate view of 
current liquidity is best reviewed at the individual company levels where risks do 
exist.

This analyses has been conducted by removing intra-company transactions, hence 
the difference between the individual Companies and Consolidated position.

Operating Profit Loans Due to 2026 Operating Margin

7,283,990 61,597,116 12%

Net Debt EBITDA Ratio

494,190,795 12,196,934 40.5

Operating Profit Net Interest Paid Net Interest Paid Cover

7,283,990 13,549,179 0.54

Current Assets  (minus 
inventory)

Current Liabilities Ratio

79,033,379 89,640,331 0.9
2020 Revenue Loans Due in 2021 Turnover Ratio

61,597,116 43,236,459 1.42

Total Assets Total Liabilities Net Assets

534,448,862 522,108,519 12,340,343

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 90



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 31

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests 

Company Breakdown

Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum (WNM Ltd)

The principal activity of the group is the provision of burial and funeral services
and the maintenance of Brookwood Cemetery

At 31st December 2020, the Group owed £335k to Woking Borough Council of
which 100% is due after more than one year.

a. Short-Term Turnover Ratio (1 Year) : The short-term turnover ratio highlights
Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum are able to service their annual borrowing c5
times over in the current year.

b. Medium-Term Turnover Ratio (5 Years): No split provided

c. Operating Margin: Operating margin is 31% for Woking Necropolis and
Mausoleum.

d. Free Cash Flow to Net Debt: Net operating cash flow is 10% of net debt 
highlighting 10% of net debt could be covered by current year cash flows. 

e. Net Profit/Loss: The company is making a net loss of £278k which is largely 
caused by the large administrative expenses. 

f. Net Debt to EBITDA: The ratio highlights net debt is 2 times EBITDA in the 
year.

g. Net Interest Paid Cover: The ratio of EBIT to interest payable charges is 
6,473.

h. Acid Ratio: The ratio of current assets to current liabilities is 1.3.

i. Net Asset Value : Net assets are positive.

Observations

As an operational trading company WNM has a positive Net Assets position, and 
operating margin of 31%.  Evaluating these ratios the Company is in a robust 
financial position, with Amber flags in relation to Net Debt levels which warrant 
monitoring rather than immediate action or response.

2020 Revenue Loans Due in 2021 Turnover Ratio

910,703 194,502 4.68

Operating Profit Revenue Operating Margin

278,357 910,703 31%

Net Debt EBITDA Ratio

1,072,273 546,352 1.96

Operating Profit Net Interest Paid Net Interest Paid Cover

278,357 43 6,473

Current Assets  (minus 
inventory)

Current Liabilities Ratio

260,769 194,502 1.3

Net Operating Cash Net Debt Ratio

109,090 1,072,273 10%

Total Assets Total Liabilities Net Assets

5,222,810 1,264,758 3,958,052

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 91



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 32

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Company Breakdown

Victoria Square Woking (VSWL)

The principal activity of the company is that of an ongoing redevelopment project
on land to the west side of the existing Peacocks Centre and Wolsey Place
Shopping Centre in Woking.

At 31st December 2020, VSWL owed £497m to Woking Borough Council of which
0.3% is due within one year and the remaining 99.7% is due after more than one
year.

a. Short-Term Turnover Ratio (1 Year): It has not been possible to calculate
short term turnover ratio given the company has generated no revenue in the
year.

b. Medium-Term Turnover Ratio (5 Years) : It has not been possible to calculate
medium term turnover ratio given the company has generated no revenue in the
year.

c. Operating Margin: It has not been possible to calculate operating margin given
the company has generated no revenue in the year.

d. Free Cash Flow to Net Debt: It has not been possible to calculate operating 
margin given the company has not provided a cash flow. 

e. Net Debt to EBITDA: It has not been possible to calculate operating margin 
given the company has nil gross profit in the year. 

f. Net Profit/Loss : The company is making a net loss of £19k which is largely 
caused by the large interest payments made on loans. 

g. Net Interest Paid Cover: The ratio of EBIT to interest payable charges is -0.9 
highlighting very low interest costs which is expected given the development 
stage of the company. 

h. Acid Ratio: The ratio of current assets to current liabilities is 1.2.

i. Net Asset Value: Net assets are negative.

Observations

As Victoria Square is yet to become operational, the financial ratio assessment is 
more limited.  The Company is in a negative net asset position, and holds a 
significant Debt value (£497m) owed to the Council.

Operating Loss Net Interest Paid Net Interest Paid Cover

-9,877 9,332 -0.9

Current Assets  (minus 
inventory)

Current Liabilities Ratio

17,845,288 15,059,760 1.2

Total Assets Total Liabilities Net Liabilities

498,917,689 510,408,982 -11,491,293

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 92



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 33

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Companies Net Asset Position

The net assets of each of the companies has been assessed further in this section.
Each graph highlights the companies current and non-current assets and
liabilities, as well as the overall net asset position.

1. ThamesWey Energy Limited (TEL)

➢ The net assets in TEL highlights the company holds a significantly large value 
(£43.5m) of non-current assets largely relating to plant and machinery and 
assets under construction. 

➢ The value of current liabilities is also significant at £36.8m, this is made up of 
loan amounts due to Woking Borough Council within the next year. 

➢ The overall net liability position of the company is -£321k.

2. ThamesWey Housing Limited (THL)

➢ The net asset position in THL highlights the company holds a significant 
amount of non-current liabilities £314.9m, this is made up of loan amounts 
due to Woking Borough Council after one year. 

➢ This is offset by a large value (£277.7m) of non-current assets largely relating 
to investment properties held. 

➢ The overall net asset position of the company is £30.2m 

3. ThamesWey Developments Limited (TDL)

➢ The net assets in TDL highlights the company holds a significantly large value 
(£94.6m) of current assets largely relating to ‘amounts recoverable on 
contract’ sitting within the debtors balance. 

➢ The value of both current and non-current liabilities is also significant at £43.3 
and £61.2m respectively, this is made up of loan amounts due to Woking 
Borough Council. 

➢ The overall net asset position of the company is £2.9m.

Figure 16 – ThamesWey Energy Limited – Net Asset Position (£’000)

Figure 17 – ThamesWey Housing Limited – Net Asset Position (£’000)

Figure 18 – ThamesWey Developments Limited – Net Asset Position (£’000)

4,161

36,780

43,550

11,251

-321
-10,000

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

Current Assets Current Liabilities Non-Current Assets Non-Current
Liabilities

Net Assets

94,600

43,288

12,850

61,223

2,940

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

Current Assets Current Liabilities Non-Current Assets Non-Current
Liabilities

Net Assets

102,433

35,074

277,712
314,877

30,194

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Current Assets Current Liabilities Non-Current Assets Non-Current
Liabilities

Net Assets

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 93



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 34

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Companies Net Asset Position (continued)

4. ThamesWey Central Milton Keynes (TCMK)

➢ The net assets in TCMK highlights the company holds a significantly large value 
(£31.8m) of non-current liabilities largely relating to loan amounts due to 
Woking Borough Council. 

➢ The value of non-current assets is also significant at £17.0m, this is made up 
of plant and machinery, as well as a substantial holding of buildings. 

➢ The company is in a net liability position of £20.9m.

5. ThamesWey Group

➢ The net liabilities in the Group highlights the company holds a significantly 
large value £432m of non-current liabilities largely relating to loan amounts 
due to Woking Borough Council. 

➢ The Group also holds a large value of non-current assets, making up £349.6m, 
this is mostly comprised of investment property which makes up £252.6m of 
the total non-current assets. 

➢ The overall net asset position of the company is £12.3m 

6. Victoria Square Woking Limited (VSWL)

➢ The net assets in VSWL highlights the company holds a significantly large value 
(£498.5m) of non-current assets largely relating to inventories and work in 
progress (WIP) held for the redevelopment project. 

➢ The value of non-current liabilities is similarly significant at £495.3m, this is 
made up of loan amounts due to Woking Borough Council. 

➢ Victoria Square is in an overall net liability position of £11.5m. 

Figure 19 – ThamesWey Central Milton Keynes – Net Asset Position (£’000)

Figure 20 – ThamesWey Group Limited – Net Asset Position (£’000)

Figure 21 – Victoria Square Woking Limited – Net Asset Position (£’000)

1,247 1,977

16,966

37,169

-20,931-30,000

-20,000

-10,000

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

Current Assets Current Liabilities Non-Current Assets Non-Current
Liabilities

Net AssetsV
a

lu
e

 (
£

'0
0

0
)

498,496

15,060 421

495,349

-11,491-100,000

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

Current Assets Current Liabilities Non-Current
Assets

Non-Current
Liabilities

Net Assets

V
a

lu
e

 (
£

’0
0

0
)

184,888

89,641

349,561

432,468

12,340

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

Current Assets Current Liabilities Non-Current Assets Non-Current
Liabilities

Net Assets

V
a

lu
e

 (
£

’0
0

0
)

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 94



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 35

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Financial Interests

Companies Net Asset Position (continued)

7. Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum

➢ The net assets in Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum highlights the company 
holds a significantly large value (£4.4m) of non-current assets largely relating 
to freehold property. 

➢ The value of non-current liabilities is also significant at £1.1m, this is made up 
of both loans to group undertakings, as well as provisions for liabilities. 

➢ The overall net asset position of the company is £4.0m 

Figure 22 – Woking Necropolis and Mausoleum – Net Asset Position (£’000)

827

195

4,396

1,070

3,958

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

Current Assets Current Liabilities Non-Current Assets Non-Current
Liabilities

Net Assets

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 95



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 36

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Contractual Obligations

Introduction

Within this section the contractual obligations held by Woking Borough Council
are assessed, and grant position as per the statement of accounts. This review
has included:

➢ The latest Statement of Accounts – 1st April 2021 

➢ A breakdown of grants received in the year to date; split by capital and 
revenue grants

➢ A breakdown of the Council’s contract register in the year

The resources noted above were provided by Woking Borough Council, we have 
not sought to verify accuracy or validate representations made by management in 
interpretation of the data. 

The following subsections are shown;

1. A general overview of the grant position 

2. The accounting policy for grants (as per CIPFA) 

3. A detailed overview of the capital grants received 

4. A detailed overview of the revenue grants received

5. An overview of the contractual obligations held by the Council 

A summary of our key statements in the section to the right, this outlines the 
significant observations and risks we noted during our assessment.

Key Statements:

➢ WBC hold a total of £7.9m in outstanding Capital Grants at October 

2021.

➢ WBC have received a total of £29.2m from Homes England related to 

work at Triangle Site, with £1.55m received in the current year. 

➢ WBC have received a total of £9.4m from Homes England related to 

work as part of the Sheerwater leisure centre.

➢ WBC have received a total of £3.1m in grants from BEIS relating to a 

heat decarbonisation scheme. 

➢ Revenue grants received by WBC in 2020/21 were £47m to date. 

➢ WBC have medium-term contractual obligations of £89.5m.

➢ WBC have long-term contractual obligations of £39.6m

Observations:

➢ WBC have specific contractual obligations relating to grants received 

from Homes England.

➢ WBC have appropriate systems in place to ensure that revenue grants 

are administered appropriately, and the grant reimbursements are 

correct. 

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 96



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 37

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Contractual Obligations

Contractual Obligations – General Overview

➢ The Council receives grants for several purposes, including to support
Government policy, encourage certain outcomes and behaviours, and to
provide financial stability.

➢ The Council receive two types of Grants; capital grants which are used to
purchase or develop assets with the aim of having a wider community
benefit, and revenue grants, which are used for expenditure which does not
result in a lasting asset.

Accounting Policy for Grants

➢ Grants for revenue expenditure are accounted for as a credit to the the CIES
in same period as the expenditure to which they relate.

➢ Where a grant is received to purchase a fixed asset and any conditions have
not been met, the grant is credited to the ‘capital grants received in
advance’ liability account in the Balance Sheet.

➢ When the conditions have been met, or if there are no conditions, the grant
is recognised in the CIES. The grant is held in the ‘capital grants unapplied’
reserve in the Balance Sheet until the expenditure is incurred, when it is
transferred into the capital adjustment account.

Capital Grants

➢ At 31st March 2021, Woking Borough Council had £6.32m in remaining
capital grants. During the year the Council received a further £1.62m taking
the total capital grant balance at 1st December 2021 to £7.94m.

➢ Of the £7.49m outstanding balance, £0.9m relates to capital grants
unapplied. These are therefore recorded in reserves within the balance
sheet.

➢ £5.4m relates to capital grants received in advance, these are recorded as a
liability in the balance sheet given the conditions are yet to be met by the
Council.

➢ £1.7m relates to grants received during 2021/22, which reflects the fact
that capital financing is undertaken at year end and therefore capital

commitments against grants received have not been worked through

➢ An assessment of the largest grants received by the Council has been
performed in the next section. A materiality threshold of £1m has been used
to determine which grants to test.

Grants 
Balance 
£’000

Capital Grants Unapplied 985

LPSA2 318

SCC Raingarden 10

Community Housing Fund 15

FSSD Park Improvements 16

Disabled Facilities Grant 579

Free Swimming 17

Mortgage Rescue 30

Capital Grants Received in Advance 5,338

SCC Lakeview Cycling Legacy Grant 1

Armed Forces Covenant Grant 8

Heritage Brookwood Cemetery 20

Homes England (Triangle) 2,154

Decarbonisation Scheme 3,149

Personalisation and Prevention 7

Received in 2021/22 1,619

Homes England (Triangle) 1,552

Homes England (OWILS) 493

Homes England (121 Chertsey Road) 104

Football Foundation  3G Woking College (380)

London Marathon CT 3G Woking College (150)

Horsell Amenity Fund (1)

Total 7,942

Figure 23 – Capital Grant Position - £’000

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 97



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 38

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Contractual Obligations

Contractual Obligations – Capital Grants (continued)

Homes England Grant

➢ The Council have received a total of £43m in capital grants relating to
Homes England with £2m received in the current year.

➢ Homes England entrusts the grant recipients with a public service obligation
to provide and facilitate the provision of affordable homes in England for
persons failed by market housing.

➢ Woking Borough Council have applied for grants from Homes England in
relation to the projects such as Sheerwater Regeneration and HIF. This is the
Council’s regeneration project to transform the centre of Sheerwater into a
sustainable community and attractive new neighbourhood.

➢ The project funding is subject to monitoring and evaluation across a number
of milestones stated in the funding agreements.

➢ The Council must meet the conditions set out within the agreement in order
to receive (and retain) the grant funding. The conditions include various
stipulations including the progress of infrastructure against milestones,
housing units started and completed and wider benefits achieved.

Decarbonisation Scheme

➢ This grant relates to funding to assist the Council in decarbonising heat from
the Department of Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS).

➢ The grant is to be used to connect two large office buildings to a new low
carbon district heating and cooling network within Woking.

➢ Within the documentation provided it is noted that the grant is conditional
upon specific requirements, including, providing a full risk register, firm
pricing, energy savings calculations and evidence to support electricity
costs.

➢ The grant also requires, amongst other things, monitoring reports to be
provided monthly highlighting the status of the projects, project spend and
any risks impacting project delivery.

Revenue Grants

➢ The graph highlights the Council has received a total of £22.4m in revenue
grants in the current year to date. The data used relates to November 2021,
representing nine months of the financial year, an extrapolated figure for
the full year would be £29m.

➢ The spike in the graph in 2020 shows the current year grant income is a
significant decrease of 53% from the prior year where the Council received
£47m in grant income, even using the extrapolated figure it is noted the
value of grants received in 2020 were much larger. This is due to the
impacts of Covid-19 and the grants received by the Council in support of
this.

➢ There were five grants received in the year that were over £1m, we have
extracted these in the table in figure 25. Two of these related to Covid
specific grants, the total of which sums to £7.3m, making up 32% of the total
grant income received.

47,225

29,898

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

50,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Figure 24 – Grant Income by Year -£’000

Revenue Grants: Woking Borough Council received £22.4m in 
revenue grants in the year. This is a decrease of 53% on the prior 
year. 

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

Forecast

P
age 98



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 39

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Contractual Obligations

Revenue Grants (continued)

➢ We have assessed each of these grants to determine if there are any risks of
the Council not meeting the obligations, leading to a negative impact on
revenue.

Rent Allowance Benefit Subsidy & Rent Rebates Benefit Subsidy

➢ The rent allowance and rent rebates received relate to housing benefits
which are paid out by the Council on behalf of Central Government. The
grants seen in the table above relate to reimbursements of these housing
benefit payments and are claimed by the completion of subsidy forms.

➢ The Council has systems in place to ensure the benefit payments are
administered appropriately and the grant reimbursements are correct.

Source of Finance PFI Credit

➢ The PFI credit is a payment to the Council each year across a twenty-five
year period in respect of a completed housing PFI scheme. The properties
under the scheme are managed by a housing association.

➢ The land is being provided by the Council for free under a 125 year lease,
over which period Woking will retain nomination rights (even after the 25
year term of the contract); the rent levels will remain at social housing levels
in accordance with the S106 Agreement. Units built provide social housing
to people on the Woking’s Housing Register throughout the 125 years.

➢ MTVH manage and maintain the properties for the remaining 100 years
after the end of the UC payments, providing housing for the Council’s
nominations. It is only after the 125 year lease terminates that the houses
revert back to the Council.

Sources of Finance Expanded Retail Relief and Covid NDR Relief Additional
Grant

➢ These grants are paid to the Council by Central Government in respect of
reliefs (‘discounts’) granted on business rates to businesses.

➢ The figures in the final accounts each year are based on the final ‘claim’ form
for the year (the NNDR3 form)

➢ The Council has systems in place to ensure the business rates are collected
appropriately and the grant reimbursements are correct.

Grant Amount (£’000) 

Rent Allowance Benefit Subsidy 6,629

Rent Rebates Benefit Subsidy 4,437

Sources of Finance PFI Credit 1,457

Sources of Finance Expanded Retail Relief 5,906

Sources of Finance Covid NDR Relief Additional Grant 1,459

Other 2,538

Total 22,426

Figure 25 – Revenue Grants Above Investigation Threshold

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 99



Private and ConfidentialWoking Borough Council - Comprehensive Statement 40

Comprehensive Statement – The Council’s Contractual Obligations

Contract position

➢ According to the Council’s contract register the Council had 158 live
contracts as at 31st October 2021. The value of these contracts was
£237.6m.

➢ Of the 158 contracts Woking had with suppliers, 9 had a total contract value
of over £1m. Of these contracts, the 3 with the highest value were with:

1. Woking Housing Partnership Ltd – A £96.0m contract spanning 60
months. The contract sits within Housing and relates to the provision of
housing management, repairs and planned maintenance. (3 months
remaining)

2. Skanska Rashleigh Weatherfoil Ltd – A £40.0m contract spanning 120
months. The contract sits within Building Services and relates to
“integrated facilities management services for all council commercial
properties”. (1 year and 10 months remaining)

3. Evolution – A £36.5m contract spanning 300 months. The contract sits
within Housing and relates to “the provision of 224 new homes for letting
at social rent levels” under the PFI Housing Contract. (18 years remaining)

➢ As demonstrated in Figure 26, the majority of the Councils contracts are due
to expire in 2022, demonstrating that the Council do not have significant
contractual obligations beyond the short-term time period.

➢ For 2023, there are £64.1m worth of contracts due to expire, indicating
that the Council do have contractual obligations in the medium-term relating
to these contracts. The most significant of these contracts are;

1. Skanska Rashleigh Weatherfoil Ltd - Integrated facilities management
services for all Council commercial properties - £40m

2. Serco - Grounds Maintenance and Street Cleansing Service – £20m

➢ For 2025, there are £23.7m worth of contracts due to expire, indicating
that the Council do have contractual obligations in the medium-term relating
to these contracts. The most significant of these contracts are;

1. Kier Construction - Development of 58 new sheltered housing units in Old
Woking - £15m

2. Freedom Leisure - Manage the Leisure Centres and facilities in Woking
Borough. - £8m

▪ For 2039, there is £36m worth of contracts dues to expire, indicating that
the Council have contractual obligations in the long-term. This contract
relates to;

1. Evolution - To provide 224 new homes for letting at social rent levels
under the PFI Housing Contract - £36.5m (As above).

 -

 20

 40

 60

 80

 100

 120

V
a

lu
e

 o
f 

e
x
p

ir
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 (
£

m
)

Year

Figure 26 – Contract Maturity by Year - £’m

Medium-Term Obligations: Woking Borough Council have £89.5m 
worth of contractual obligations in the medium-term.

Long-Term Obligations: Woking Borough Council have £39.6m 
worth of contractual obligations in the medium-term.

Section: Comprehensive Statement: Asset Position Borrowing Position Financial Interests Contractual Obligations

P
age 100



OSC22-007

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 24 JANUARY 2022

DR GIFTY EDILA’S REPORT AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION CORPORATE 
PEER CHALLENGE – UPDATE ON RECOMMENDATIONS

Executive Summary

The Council has undertaken an extensive programme of change to ensure continuing improvement 
in all areas of public life but particularly in those areas addressed within Dr Gifty Edila’s Report and 
the Local Government Association’s Corporate Peer Challenge. This report outlines the steps taken 
by the Council to date.

Recommendations

RESOLVE That:

The report be noted 

The Committee has the authority to determine the recommendation(s) set out above.

Background Papers: WBC21-028 Update on Council Decisions Following The Independent 
Investigation into the Woking Football Club and Associated 
Developments
EXE20-047 Local Government Association Peer Challenge

Reporting Person: Joanne McIntosh, Director of Legal and Democratic Services/ 
Monitoring Officer
Email: joanne.mcintosh@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3038 

Contact Person: Joanne McIntosh, Director of Legal and Democratic Services/ 
Monitoring Officer
Email: joanne.mcintosh@woking.gov.uk, Extn: 3038 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ayesha Azad
Email: cllrayesha.azad@woking.gov.uk

Shadow Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ann-Marie Barker
Email: cllrann-marie.barker@woking.gov.uk

 

Date Published: 14 January 2022

Page 101

Agenda Item 9

https://moderngov.woking.gov.uk/documents/s18709/Update%20on%20Council%20Decisions%20following%20the%20Independent%20Investigation%20into%20the%20Woking%20Football%20Club%20an.pdf
https://moderngov.woking.gov.uk/documents/s18709/Update%20on%20Council%20Decisions%20following%20the%20Independent%20Investigation%20into%20the%20Woking%20Football%20Club%20an.pdf
https://moderngov.woking.gov.uk/documents/s18709/Update%20on%20Council%20Decisions%20following%20the%20Independent%20Investigation%20into%20the%20Woking%20Football%20Club%20an.pdf
https://moderngov.woking.gov.uk/documents/s12875/EXE20-047%20Local%20Government%20Association%20Peer%20Challenge.pdf


Dr Gifty Edila’s Report – Update on Recommendations

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At its meeting on 7 January 2021, Full Council considered Dr Gifty Edila’s recommendations 
following her independent investigation into the Woking Football Club and associated 
developments. Full Council resolved that Dr Gifty Edila’s recommendations should be 
accepted, and that Officers should report back to Council, on 29 July 2021, on progress made 
against the recommendations.  Full Council received the progress report and resolved that a 
further report should be received by Council in February 2022.

1.2 Further to the above, the Executive received a report on 16 July 2020 outlining the 
recommendation of the Local Government Associations Corporate Peer Challenge. Given the 
synergy between the reviews, this report outlines the steps taken by the Council to date to 
comply with the recommendations flowing from both matters together with measures put in 
place to ensure continuing compliance with the recommendations.  

1.3 The Council has committed to a continuing programme of change and self-improvement. It has 
taken steps to ensure compliance with the recommendations and in some circumstances taken 
steps which go beyond what was recommended. These recommendations have been regularly 
monitored by the Council’s Corporate Leadership Team meeting and in respect of Dr Gifty’s 
recommendations progress has been reported to Full Council. This report provides an update 
on the continuing programme of change which encompasses compliance with the 
recommendations. A further report shall be received by Full Council in February, taking into 
account any observations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

2.0 Dr Edila’s Recommendations

2.1 The Council and its Committees have received various reports outlining the steps undertaken 
to comply with the recommendations contained within Dr Edila’s report. The Council put 
measures in place to ensure compliance with these recommendations and has engaged in a 
programme of change and improvement. Most of the recommended actions have already been 
completed and processes embedded into the Council’s governance procedures to ensure 
continuing compliance. This report does not revisit those matters already reported but will focus 
on those areas where there has been a notable development since the last report. Dr Gifty 
Edila’s recommendations are listed in the July 2021 Council report together with the 
corresponding steps taken by the Council. This report has been provided to Members as 
background information.

2.2 Recommendation 2

Recommendation 2 (ii) was that:-

“ (ii) If the WFC project proceeds to implementation, in the event of planning permission being 
obtained, an updated report should go to the Executive and Full Council and it should 
include confirmation of the legal powers on which the agreements were made.”

Recommendation 2(ii) is contingent on planning permission being obtained for the Woking 
Football Club development.  The Secretary of State has now dismissed the Planning Appeal 
and as such refused to grant planning permission in respect of this matter. A copy of the decision 
has been circulated to all Councillors for their information. As such, this recommendation, and 
the Development Agreements, shall fall away. 

Page 102



Dr Gifty Edila’s Report – Update on Recommendations

2.3 Recommendation 4

Recommendation 4 (ii) was that:-

“(ii) Legal Services should seek Lexcel accreditation from the Law Society of England and 
Wales.”

2.4  At its meeting on 29 July, Full Council agreed to the creation and funding of a new post within 
Legal Services together with a budget to cover a consultant and accreditation fees to enable 
the Legal Services team to achieve Lexcel accreditation.

2.5  The Council has now successfully recruited a new officer to the role of Lexcel Administrator. 
The successful candidate started at Woking on 22 December. Prior to the appointment the 
Council has sought assistance from Spelthorne Borough Council (which has been awarded 
accreditation) to ensure that it is in the best position to start the working towards accreditation. 
The Council has received quotes from Lexcel consultants and is taking steps to appoint its 
preferred consultant. The Legal Services team has embraced the prospect and remains 
confident that it shall achieve accreditation.

2.6 It was agreed in the body of the report to Full Council, that the Legal Services Team shall report 
back to Full Council to confirm that it has been awarded accreditation. It is anticipated that 
accreditation shall be achieved by the Autumn.

2.7 Recommendation 6

Recommendation 6 was that:-

“Part II confidential information in reports dealing with development projects should be limited 
to information that should not be in the public domain at that point in time and should not apply 
to the entire report.”

The Council aims to consider all matters concerning development projects or otherwise in the 
public domain but sometimes this is not possible, particularly given the nature of commercial 
developments.  The use of Part II shall be kept to a minimum and continues to be carefully 
considered by the Monitoring Officer in line with the statutory framework.  

At its meeting on 7 October 2021, the Executive considered the first annual report in respect 
of Part II items. 

2.8 Recommendation 13

Recommendation 13 (ii) was that:-

“(ii) WBC should allocate a part-time Scrutiny Officer post to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to assist with their work.”

A part-time Scrutiny Officer is now in place to assist the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
its work. The Council’s Director of Planning, Giorgio Framalicco, has also taken on the role as 
the Corporate Leadership Team sponsor to the Committee. This demonstrates the Council’s 
continuing commitment to support the valuable work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
As such, compliance has been achieved in respect of the recommendation. 

3.0 Local Government Association Peer Challenge 

3.1 The Council invited the Local Government Association (LGA) to undertake a Corporate Peer 
Challenge in November 2019. The report of the LGA was considered by the Executive on 16 
July 2020. 

Page 103



Dr Gifty Edila’s Report – Update on Recommendations

3.2 Overall, the report was positive about the Council, its ambition, its political leadership and its 
management capacity. The value of such reviews is that over time there are always things that 
can be improved. In that regard the LGA has made a series of recommendations. The Executive 
determined the Council’s response to these recommendation in July 2020. These 
recommendations provide a “roadmap” to the Council for improvements it can make in order to 
progress further on its journey to complete its good governance framework and enhance its 
transformation. Substantial work has been undertaken to address the recommendations 
highlighted in the Peer Challenge report, and the further actions planned will ensure continuing 
improvements. The Council’s response and action plan can be found at Appendix 1 to this 
report.

3.3 The Council’s response to the recommendations shall continue to be monitored by the 
Corporate Leadership Team and the actions highlighted shall be implemented. 

4.0 Conclusion 

4.1 The Council has undertaken an extensive programme of change to ensure continuing 
improvement in all areas of public life but particularly in those areas addressed within this report. 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s observations and feedback on these matters is 
welcomed to assist and inform the programme of change. 

5.0 Corporate Strategy

5.1 The actions undertaken by the Council support the Council’s Corporate Plan objectives and 
directly influence the development of the Corporate Strategy. 

6.0 Implications

Finance and Risk

None specifically arising from this report.

Equalities and Human Resources

None specifically arising from this report.

Legal

None specifically arising from this report.

7.0 Engagement and Consultation

7.1 None specifically arising from this report. 

REPORT ENDS

Page 104



Appendix 1 – LGA Corporate Peer Review Response and Action Plan

Executive Resolution Summary of actions arising from resolution Status

(i) Officers prepare a summary 
strategy document based on 
existing approved strategies 
and present it to Council for 
approval as part of the Business 
Plan process for 2021/22

At its meeting of 25 March 2021, the Executive approved 
the Councils Corporate Plan for 2021/22. The Corporate 
Plan provides an overview of the Council’s strategic 
focus for the coming year. It encapsulates the 
commitments made previously by the Council, bringing 
them together into a single plan of action.

Completed

(ii) following the approval by 
Council of the summary 
document of existing approved 
strategies, proposed at (i) 
above, to undertake a 
programme of communications 
with residents and stakeholders 
outlining the wider policy 
approach of the Council

(iii) Officers undertake a series 
of public engagement events 
to explain the framework for 
town centre development 
proposals 

(iv) the Citizens Panel be re-
established and a programme 
of issues upon which to consult 

 Resolutions (i) (ii) and (iii) all relate directly to the 
Council’s commitment to constant communication with 
its residents. Whilst each resolution has been 
addressed, they are best read in conjunction with each 
other.  

The Council’s vision is to be in constant communication 
with residents and to have an embedded culture of 
consultation in how it operates and makes decisions that 
are in the best interests of the communities of the 
Woking Borough. The Executive received a report on 20 
January on Community Engagement and 
Communication.

In summary, the Council has taken significant steps to 
implement an ambitious programme of engagement. 
Investment has been made into an on-line civic 
engagement digital platform, the Woking Community 
Forum, and a representative Residents’ Panel has been 
established. The first meeting of the Residents’ Panel 
was on the 7th July. There are in excess of 750 residents 

Completed and ongoing. Engagement and 
Consultation will continue to be a key priority in 
the emerging Corporate Plan. The Corporate 
Plan will have key performance indictors and 
monitoring arrangements in place.

P
age 105



Appendix 1 – LGA Corporate Peer Review Response and Action Plan

it be established with an initial 
focus on the health and well-
being in partnership with the 
Integrated Care Partnership

who have registered to be on the Panel. 

A series of community roadshows took place between 
November and December 2021 alongside an 
engagement questionnaire, to obtain community 
feedback, to inform and influence the corporate priorities 
for the Council.

The Council has determined that residents’ views should 
influence the Council’s five-year Corporate Strategy for 
2022-2027. To fulfil this commitment, an online 
questionnaire was hosted on the Council’s engagement 
hub, Woking Community Forum. In addition, 3,000 
paper copies were sent to randomly selected 
households across the borough and eight engagement 
roadshows were hosted at key community-based 
locations. 

The Council has committed to prepare a newly defined 
Town Centre Masterplan to help guide future 
sustainable development within the Town Centre. The 
Executive Committee at their meeting of the 15 July 
2021 agreed the overview of the master plan and 
budget.   The Masterplan will seek to establish an 
overarching vision for Woking Town Centre that will 
enable sustainable development including new homes, 
a thriving business and retail destination as well as 
strengthening Woking as a cultural, recreational and 
community destination.  During late summer a series of 
virtual workshops were held with Woking Residents’ 
Panel, who gave their views on the current development 
of Woking Town Centre and their aspirations for the 

P
age 106



Appendix 1 – LGA Corporate Peer Review Response and Action Plan

future. In addition, face-to-face meetings have been 
conducted with key employers within the borough to 
understand their future needs and wants for a 
prosperous future.  It is anticipated that the draft 
Masterplan will be presented to Council late spring 2022, 
before a formal in-depth and wide-ranging public 
consultation will begin later in the year.

(v) a survey of Members be 
undertaken to establish what 
further information they would 
find helpful to include in the 
Green Book and what further 
awareness raising and/or training 
is required in respect of the 
Council’s financial arrangements

            A review of the Green Book will commence in March 
2022 following the development and agreement of the 
new Corporate Strategy which will be considered by the 
Executive at its meeting on 3rd February 2022.

The Green Book will be reviewed in order for it to align 
with the Corporate Plan as it should provide the key 
performance information for which to measure progress 
on delivering the key priorities of the Council.

The review is being initiated through the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

Ongoing – scheduled to commence following the 
publication of the new Corporate Plan.

(vi) (vi) the proposal to Council in 
respect of a Standards Protocol 
to allow Members access to 
commercially sensitive 
information in respect of 
Thameswey Group companies, 
and any other Woking Borough 
Council subsidiaries, be 
supported

The Council adopted the amended ThamesWey Group 
Protocols (Page 281 of the consultation) which outline 
communications by ThamesWey with Councillors.

Completed

P
age 107



Appendix 1 – LGA Corporate Peer Review Response and Action Plan

(vii) the consideration by the 
Director of Finance of the 
appropriateness of borrowing 
periods be highlighted when 
the Council is requested to 
approve its annual budgets 
and its annual accounts;

Treasury management has been incorporated into the 
Medium Term Financial Planning reporting through 2021 
and the budget report to the Executive on 3rd February 
2022 and Council on 10th February 2022.

A Financial Review and Insight independent review was 
commissioned and was completed by 31st December 
2021. This review incorporates a comprehensive 
statement covering borrowing and a review of all assets 
and liabilities of Woking Borough Council and all 
companies in which it has an interest. A report is on the 
O&S Agenda for 24 January 2022. 

Ongoing 

(viii) the Council’s efficiency 
strategy be revitalised in two 
main parts, one to explore 
procurement savings and the 
other to explore operational 
efficiencies through 
automation and use of digital 
services;

The Council has developed and implemented integrated 
service and financial planning in 2021/22 as considered 
and approved by the Executive at its meeting on 15th 
July 2021.

A progress report on the integrated service and financial 
planning was provided to the meeting of the Executive 
on 7th October 2021 and 18th November which provided 
details of the Fit for the Future Programme which 
represents the Councils change plans and activity.

A Head of Transformation and Digital post has been 
established and the post holder took up the role on 18th 
October 2021. A Digital Strategy was presented to the 
Executive at its meeting on 18th November and following 
this a first year action plan is being developed.

Ongoing 

P
age 108



Appendix 1 – LGA Corporate Peer Review Response and Action Plan

(ix) an Internal Audit Review be 
undertaken in respect of the 
Overview and Scrutiny function 
and the resources required to 
ensure its effectiveness;

Internal Audit was commissioned as part of the Woking 
Borough Council (Council) Internal Audit Plan for 
2021/22 (‘Plan’), to conduct an advisory review of 
effectiveness of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee effectiveness. A draft report from the 
auditors was presented to Corporate Leadership Team 
in September and again on the 4 October including 
management comments.  The audit was finalised in 
early October and shared with those who contributed to 
audit.  

In addition the Overview & Scrutiny Committee at their 
meeting in September received a detailed paper on the 
provisions of the statutory guidance on overview and 
scrutiny published by the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) in 2019 
making recommendations for improvement. The 
implementation of the agreed actions arising and any 
additional actions arising from the audit will be monitored 
by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

Ongoing 

(x) Officers review the extent 
to which customer feedback 
opportunities and Local 
Government Association case 
studies could be used in the 
management of the Council’s 
services with a view to 
improving outcomes and 
securing efficiency 
improvements linked to the 
efficiency strategy;

The Council commissioned the Local Government 
Association to undertake a Peer Review of the Planning 
Service. This has been undertaken and the Council is 
awaiting the final report. 

A Community Engagement campaign is being 
developed and a new engagement officer post has been 
established to develop a managed programme of 
community engagement plans and activity. More details 
in respect of The Council’s Community engagement 
commitments can be found in the Community 

Ongoing 

P
age 109



Appendix 1 – LGA Corporate Peer Review Response and Action Plan

Engagement and Communication report to the 
Executive on 20 January.

A meeting was held with an ex S151 officer, through the 
Local Government Association, to gain independent 
views on the Councils Medium Term Financial Strategy 
approach and open up learning from other authorities.

(xi) the use of Zoom, Teams 
and Digital services will all be 
expanded and continued, post 
Coronavirus, and form part of 
the efficiency strategy, use of 
automation; and

The Council is adopting the Microsoft 365 platform 
towards the end of 2021 which support the Councils 
remote working policy and development of an 
increasingly more agile workplace. A change 
programme is being established alongside the technical 
implementation in order to support service adoption of 
the platform and promote collaborative working 
opportunities it presents.

The Council continues to host meetings virtually where 
legislation allows for it to do so. 

Completed 

(xii) in the autumn the Council 
should consider its longer-term 
management arrangements as 
part of its 2021/22 business 
planning process.

The Fit for the Future programme has been established 
by the Chief Executive as the programme of change for 
the Council that will establish the culture, regime and 
focus for the how the Council will operate as a trusted 
voice, advocate and agent of change for the Borough.

This programme is established on the themes of:
> A culture of engagement - to understand and respond 
to the priorities of the Borough’s Communities
> A regime of conducting Council business with 
openness and transparency enabling strong democratic 
accountability

Ongoing 

P
age 110



Appendix 1 – LGA Corporate Peer Review Response and Action Plan

> A focus on a one council way of working to deliver 
strong organisational performance and resilience

Delivering this Fit for the Future programme will include 
a review of the operating model of the Council to ensure 
it is best organised to drive forward and support the 
delivery of the programme. Proposals will be developed 
over the next 6-9 months to bring forward proposals that 
will establish a model of working for the Council that best 
addresses the challenges and maximises the returns 
from the best characteristics of the Council. The key 
principles that are informing the approach include:

> Digital First service delivery designed around the 
residents’ journey of dealings with the Council;

> working in partnership with public and commercial 
sector organisations to reduce the cost of operations; 
provide sustainable and resilient services; adopting best 
practice and innovation and positioning the Council as a 
key influencer and advocate in the region; and

> adopting our version of operating as a commercial 
organisation in support of the Council’s role as an active 
steward of the Borough’s communities and generating 
wealth and benefit within the local economy.

P
age 111





Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 113

Agenda Item 10

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 114

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 115

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 116

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 117

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 118

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 119

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 120

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 121

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 122

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 123

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 124

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 125

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 126

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 127

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 128

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 129

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 130

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 131

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 132

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 133

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 134

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 135

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 136

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 137

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 138

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 139

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 140

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 141

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 142

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 143

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 144

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 145

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 146

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 147

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 148

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 149

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 150

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 151

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 152

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 153

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 154

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 155

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 156

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 157

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 158

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 159

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 160

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 161

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 162

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 163

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 164

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com


Create PDF files without this message by purchasing novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 165

http://www.novapdf.com
http://www.novapdf.com




HIF – HOUSING OUTPUTS TASK GROUP 

TERMS OF REFERENCE

ADOPTED:  XXXX

The HIF – Housing Outputs Task Group was formed on XXX. The Group is a ‘Task and Finish 
Group’. 

Membership

The Task Group shall comprise 7 Members of the Council representing all Groups on the Council 
based on proportionality.  The Elected Members to be appointed annually by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee in May. 

Members of the Task Group will be expected to gain the views of  Councillors/ Officers/ Portoflio 
Holder / External Advisors and other representatives with a view to reporting those views to the 
Task Group.

Members of the Task Group may also be charged with specific areas to research and report back 
on to the Task Group. Any investigation requiring funding would normally be expected to be part 
of the existing O&S budget. Offsite visits will be ad hoc. Requests for additional funds for the 
purpose would be submitted to the Portfolio Holder.

Members of the Task Group may be expected to present proposals to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and, where necessary, prepare written reports.

Chairman and Vice-Chairman

The election of Chairman and appointment of Vice-Chairman will take place annually at the first 
meeting of the HIF Housing Output Task Group.  The Chairman shall be a member of the 
opposition.

Remit 

The Task Group will cover the following: 

 Understanding the additional housing output required by the Grant Determination 
Agreement (as amended). This would include both owned and non-owned outputs;

 Understanding the risks associated with delivering the agreed additional housing outputs, 
including additional affordable homes secured through the delivery of HIF and the risk of 
a default or fundamental default occurring..

 Reviewing the actions taken to mitigate those risks  and propose further actions where 
appropriate and necessary given the current market circumstances since the bid was 
agreed 

 Understanding the timescales and the implication of the proposed Woking Town Centre 
Masterplan on the delivery of the additional housing outputs.

 Reflecting and commenting on the agreed Council motion which call for ‘The council re 
asses the scheme’s housing targets under new market conditions, (especially post COVID) 
public opinion and if needed is open to renegotiations with central government.’

This is a task and finish group.  

The task group would need to be mindful of the potential for duplication given the wide 
responsibilities of the Housing Task Group and the HIF oversight Panel.

Page 167

Agenda Item 11



Terms of Reference and Meeting Management Protocol

It is envisaged that the Task Group be commenced as a task and finish group to address the areas 
of focus.  The expectation is that the group would complete their review in three months with the 
the intention of a final report being submitted to the first available O&S Committee following the 
completion of the review.

The Task Group may seek representation from the other partners involved such as Homes 
England or Surrey County Council.

Reporting

The members of the Task Group will be responsible for reporting on a regular basis to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Any proposals arising from the work of the Task Group will 
need to be reported to the Council’s Executive normally following consideration by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.

Meetings of the Task Group

The Task Group will be serviced by Democratic Services. 

The Task Group will meet as required, depending on workloads and adhoc issues arising.  The 
meetings will be held in private.  

The Task Group will have Agendas for, and Minutes of, its meetings.  These will be made available 
to all Members of the Task Group on a confidential basis.

Draft Minutes will be issued within five working days of a meeting of the Task Group, which will be 
approved, or amended and approved, at the next meeting of the Task Group. 

Page 168


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Matters Arising from the Previous Minutes OSC22-001
	6 Work Programme OSC22-002
	7 Financial Review OSC22-006
	OSC22-006 Appendix 1 Woking Borough Council - Financial Review - Comprehensive Statement (Member Briefing)
	OSC22-006 Appendix 2 Woking Borough Council - Financial Review - Comprehensive Statement (Final)

	9 Dr GIfty Edila's Report and Local Government Association Corporate Peer Challenge - Update on Recommendations OSC22-007
	Appendix 1 - LGA Peer Review Response  Action Plan

	10 Performance and Financial Monitoring Information
	11 Terms of Reference of the HIF Housing Outputs Task Group OSC22-008

